

Bid Receiving/Réception des sousmissions

RETOURNER LES SOUMISSIONS A: RETURN BIDS TO:

Bid Receiving Unit Procurement & Contracting Services 73 Leikin Drive, Loading Dock - Building M1 Mailstop # _15 Ottawa, ON, K1A 0R2

Attention: Megan McCoy (613) 843-3798

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL DEMANDE DE PROPOSITION

Proposal to: Royal Canadian Mounted Police We hereby offer to sell to Her Majesty the Queen in right of Canada, in accordance with the terms and conditions set out herein, referred to herein or attached hereto, the goods, services and construction listed herein and on any attached sheets at the price(s) set out therefor.

Proposition aux: Gendarmerie royale du Canada

Nous offrons par la présente de vendre à Sa Majesté I Reine du chef du Canada, aux conditions énoncées ou incluses par référence dans la présente et aux annexes ci-jointes, les biens, services et construction énumérés ici sur toute feuille ci-annexée, au(x) prix indiqué(s).

Comments - Commentaries

Vendor/Firm Name and Address Raison sociale et adresse du fournisseur/de l'entrepreneur

Title – Sujet	
APPLICATION/SOFTWARE ARC	HITECT
Solicitation No No. de	Date
l'invitation	nd
201404938	April 2 nd , 2014
Client Reference No No. De Ré	férence du Client
Solicitation Closes - L'invitation p	prend fin
at – à 02:00 P.M. EDT	
on – April 17th, 2014	
F.O.B F.A.B.	
Destination	
Address Enquiries to: - Adresser	toutes questions à:
Jordan McKenna –Procuremer	nt Officer
Telephone No No de	Fax No N ^O de FAX:
téléphone	
613-843-5518	613-825-0082
Bid Receiving Unit	
See Herein	
Delivery Required - Livraison	Delivery Offered - Livraison
exigée:	proposée
See Herein	
Name and title of person authori	ized to sign on hehalf of
Vendor/Firm - Nom et titre de la	-
nom du fournisseur/de l'entrepr	-
······································	
Signature	Date

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

- **1.1 INTRODUCTION**
- 1.2 SUMMARY
- **1.3 DEBRIEFINGS**

PART 2 – BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS

- 2.1 STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS
- 2.2 SUBMISSION OF BIDS
- 2.3 FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT
- 2.4 ENQUIRIES BID SOLICITATION
- 2.5 APPLICABLE LAWS
- 2.6 IMPROVEMENT OF REQUIREMENT DURING SOLICITATION PERIOD

PART 3 – BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

- 3.1 BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS
- 3.2 SECTION I : TECHNICAL BID
- 3.3 SECTION II : FINANCIAL BID
- 3.4 SECTION III : CERTIFICATIONS

PART 4 – EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

- 4.1 EVALUATION PROCEDURES
- 4.2 TECHNICAL EVALUATION
- 4.3 FINANCIAL EVALUATION
- 4.4 BASIS OF SELECTION

PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS

- 5.1 FEDERAL CONTRACTORS PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT EQUITY BID CERTIFICATION
- 5.2 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RESOURCES
- 5.3 CERTIFICATION OF LANGUAGE

PART 6 - SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

6.1 SECURITY REQUIREMENT

PART 7 – RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

- 7.1 REQUIREMENT
- 7.2 STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS
- 7.3 SECURITY REQUIREMENT
- 7.4 CONTRACT PERIOD
- 7.5 AUTHORITIES
- 7.6 PAYMENT
- 7.7 INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS
- 7.8 CERTIFICATIONS
- 7.9 APPLICABLE LAWS
- 7.10 PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS
- 7.11 FOREIGN NATIONALS (CANADIAN CONTRACTOR)
- 7.12 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

7.13 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – INFORMATION MANAGEMENT/INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

- 7.14 JOINT VENTURE
- 7.15 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES GENERAL
- 7.16 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR PRE-EXISTING SOFTWARE
- 7.17 SAFEGUARDING ELECTRONIC MEDIA
- 7.18 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
- 7.19 GOVERNMENT PROPERTY
- 7.20 IDENTIFICATION PROTOCOL RESPONSIBILITIES

List of Annexes to the Resulting Contract:

- Annex "A" Statement of Work
- Annex "B" Security Requirement Check List (SRCL)
- Annex "C" Basis of Payment
- Annex "D" Evaluation Criteria
- Annex "E" Certifications Required with Bid
- Annex "F" TBIPS Bid Submission Form

TASK-BASED INFORMATICS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (TBIPS) SUPPLY ARRANGEMENT

PART 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 INTRODUCTION

This document states terms and conditions that apply to bid solicitation # 201404938. It is divided into seven parts plus annexes and, attachments as follows :

Part 1 General Information : provides a general description of the requirement;

Part 2 Bidder Instructions : provides the instructions, clauses and conditions applicable to the bid solicitation and states that the Bidder agrees to be bound by the clauses and conditions contained in all parts of the bid solicitation;

Part 3 Bid Preparation Instructions : provides bidders with instructions on how to prepare their bid;

Part 4 Evaluation Procedures and Basis of Selection : indicates how the evaluation will be conducted, the evaluation criteria that must be addressed in the bid, if applicable, and the basis of selection;

Part 5 Certifications : includes the certifications to be provided;

Part 6 Security, Financial and Other Requirements : includes specific requirements that must be addressed by bidders; and

Part 7 Resulting Contract Clauses : includes the clauses and conditions that will apply to any resulting contract.

The annexes include the Statement of Work, the Basis of Payment, the Bid Evaluation Criteria, the Bid Submission Form, and any other annexes.

1.2 SUMMARY

- a. This bid solicitation is being issued to satisfy the requirement of the RCMP for Task-Based Informatics Professional Services (TBIPS) under the TBIPS Supply Arrangement (SA) method of supply.
- b. It is intended to result in the award of one (1) contract for one (1) year, plus two (2) one
 (1) year irrevocable options allowing Canada to extend the term of the contract(s
- c. There is a security requirement associated with this requirement. For additional information, see Part 6 – Security, Financial and Other Requirements, and Part 7 – Resulting Contract Clauses.

- d. The requirement is subject to the provisions of the World Trade Organization Agreement on Government Procurement (WTO-AGP), the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA), the Canada-Chile Free Trade Agreement (CCFTA), the Agreement on Internal Trade (AIT), the Canada-Peru Free Trade Agreement (CPFTA), the Canada-Columbia Free Trade Agreement (CCoIFTA), and the Canada-Panama Free Trade Agreement (CPanFTA) if it is in force.
- e. The TBIPS Supply Arrangement EN578-055605/E is incorporated by reference and forms part of this bid solicitation, as though expressly set out in it, subject to any express terms and conditions contained in this bid solicitation. The capitalized terms not defined in this bid solicitation have the meaning given to them in the TBIPS SA.
 - Only selected TBIPS SA Holders currently holding a TBIPS SA for Tier 1 in the National Capital Region under the EN578-055605/E series of SAs are invited to compete. SA Holders may not submit a bid in response to this bid solicitation unless they have been invited to do so. However, should an uninvited SA Holder wish to be invited, it may contact the Contracting Authority to request an invitation at any time prior to five days before the published bid closing date, and an invitation will be made to that SA Holder unless it would not be consistent with the efficient operation of the procurement system. In no circumstance will such an invitation require Canada to extend a bid closing date. The following SA Holders have been initially invited to bid on this requirement. Where additional invitations are made during the bid solicitation process, it may be that they are not reflected in a solicitation amendment
 - 01 Millennium Consulting Inc.
 - 2Keys Corporation
 - 3902641 Canada Inc.
 - 4165047 Canada Inc.
 - 529040 Ontario Inc. and 880382 Ontario Inc.
 - Accenture Inc.
 - Contract Community Inc.
 - Deloitte Inc.
 - DLS Technology Corporation
 - iFathom Corp, Simfront Simulation System Corporation, ING Engineering Inc., in JV
 - inGenius Engineering
 - Leverage Technology Resources Inc., Farlane Systems Inc., IN JOINT VENTURE
 - Phirelight Security Solutions Inc.
 - S.I. Systems Ltd.
 - TECSIS Corporation
- f. SA Holders that are invited to compete as a joint venture must submit a bid as that joint venture SA Holder, forming no other joint venture to bid. Any joint venture must be already qualified under the SA #EN578-055605/E as that joint venture at the time of bid closing in order to submit a bid.

g. The Resource Categories described below are required on an as and when requested basis in accordance Annex "A" of the TBIPS RFSA:

		Estimated
		Number of
	Level of	Resources
Resource Category	Expertise	Required
A.1 Application/Software Architect	3	1

1.3 DEBRIEFINGS

After contract award, bidders may request a debriefing on the results of the bid solicitation process. Bidders should make the request to the Contracting Authority within 15 working days of receipt of the results of the bid solicitation process. The debriefing may be provided in writing, by telephone or in person.

PART 2 – BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS

2.1 STANDARD INSTRUCTIONS, CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS

- a. All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the bid solicitation by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada (PWGSC).
- b. Bidders who submit a bid agree to be bound by the instructions, clauses and conditions of the bid solicitation and accept the clauses and conditions of the resulting contract.
- c. The 2003 (2014-03-01) Standard Instructions Goods or Services Competitive Requirements are incorporated by reference into and form part of the bid solicitation, with the following modifications: with Subsection 5.4 amended by deleting "sixty (60) days" and inserting "180 days". If there is a conflict between the provisions of 2003 and this document, this document prevails.

The text under subsections 4 and 5 of Section 01 – Code of Conduct and Certifications of 2003 referenced above is replaced by:

4. Bidders who are incorporated or who are a sole proprietorship, including those bidding as a joint venture, have already provided a list of names of all individuals who are directors of the Bidder, or the name of the owner, at the time of submitting an arrangement under the Request for Supply Arrangement (RFSA). These bidders must diligently maintain this list up-to-date by informing

Canada in writing of any change occurring during the validity period of the bid as well as during the period of any contract arising from this bid solicitation.

 Canada may, at any time, request that a Bidder provide properly completed and signed Consent Forms (<u>Consent to a Criminal Record Verification form -</u> *PWGSC-TPSGC 229*) for any or all individuals aforementioned list within a specified time period. Failure to provide such Consent Forms within the time period provided will result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

2.2 SUBMISSION OF BIDS

a) Bids must be submitted only to RCMP Bid Receiving Unit by the date, time and place indicated on page 1 of the bid solicitation.

2.3 FORMER PUBLIC SERVANT

a. Information Required

Contracts awarded to former public servants (FPS) in receipt of a pension or of a lump sum payment must bear the closest public scrutiny, and reflect fairness in the spending of public funds. In order to comply with Treasury Board policies and directives on contracts with FPS, bidders must provide the information required below before contract award.

b. Definitions

For the purposes of this clause, **"former public servant"** is any former member of a department as defined in the *Financial Administration Act*, R.S., 1985, c. F-11, a former member of the Canadian Armed Forces or a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police. A former public servant may be:

An individual;

an individual who has incorporated; a partnership made of former public servants; or a sole proprietorship or entity where the affected individual has a controlling or major interest in the entity.

"lump sum payment period" means the period measured in weeks of salary, for which payment has been made to facilitate the transition to retirement or to other employment as a result of the implementation of various programs to reduce the size of the Public Service. The lump sum payment period does not include the period of severance pay, which is measured in a like manner.

"pension" means a pension or annual allowance paid under the <u>Public Service</u> <u>Superannuation Act</u> (PSSA), R.S., 1985, c.P-36, and any increases paid pursuant to the <u>Supplementary Retirement Benefits Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.S-24 as it affects the PSSA. It does not include pensions payable pursuant_to the <u>Canadian Forces Superannuation</u> <u>Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.C-17, the <u>Defence Services Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c.D-3, the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Pension Continuation Act</u>, 1970, c.R-10, and the <u>Royal Canadian Mounted Police Superannuation Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.R-11, the <u>Members of Parliament Retiring Allowances Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.M-5, and that portion of pension payable to the <u>Canada Pension Plan Act</u>, R.S., 1985, c.C-8.

c. Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension

As per the above definitions, is the Bidder a FPS in receipt of a pension? **Yes () No ()** If so, the Bidder must provide the following information, for all FPS in receipt of a pension, as applicable:

Name of former public servant;

Date of termination of employment or retirement from the Public Service. By providing this information, Bidders agree that the successful Bidder's status, with respect to being a former public servant in receipt of a pension, will be reported on departmental web sites as part of the published proactive disclosure reports in accordance with <u>Contracting Policy Notice: 2012-2</u> and the <u>Guidelines on the</u> <u>Proactive Disclosure of Contracts</u>.

d. Work Force Adjustment Directive

Is the Bidder a FPS who received a lump sum payment pursuant to the terms of the Work Force Adjustment Directive? **Yes () No ()**

If so, the Bidder must provide the following information:

Name of former public servant;

Conditions of the lump sum payment incentive;

Date of termination of employment;

Amount of lump sum payment;

Rate of pay on which lump sum payment is based;

Period of lump sum payment including start date, end date and number of weeks;

Number and amount (professional fees) of other contracts subject to the restrictions of a work force adjustment program.

For all contracts awarded during the lump sum payment period, the total amount of fees that may be paid to a FPS who received a lump sum payment is \$5,000, including Applicable Taxes.

2.4 ENQUIRIES - BID SOLICITATION

- a. All enquiries must be submitted in writing to the Contracting Authority no later than 5 (five) calendar days before the bid closing date. Enquiries received after that time may not be answered.
- b. Bidders should reference as accurately as possible the numbered item of the bid solicitation to which the enquiry relates. Care should be taken by bidders to explain each question in sufficient detail in order to enable Canada to provide an accurate answer. Technical enquiries that are of a "proprietary" nature must be clearly marked "proprietary" at each relevant item. Items identified as proprietary will be treated as such except where Canada determines that the enquiry is not of a proprietary nature.

Canada may edit the questions or may request that the Bidder do so, so that the proprietary nature of the question is eliminated, and the enquiry can be answered with copies to all bidders. Enquiries not submitted in a form that can be distributed to all bidders may not be answered by Canada.

2.5 APPLICABLE LAWS

Any resulting contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in Ontario.

Note to Bidders: A bidder may, at its discretion, substitute the applicable laws of a Canadian province or territory of their choice without affecting the validity of its bid, by deleting the name of the Canadian province or territory specified and inserting the name of the Canadian province or territory of its choice. If no change is made, it acknowledges that the applicable laws specified are acceptable to the Bidder. Bidders are requested to indicate the Canadian province or territory they wish to apply to any resulting contract in their bid submission.

2.6 IMPROVEMENT OF REQUIREMENT DURING SOLICITATION PERIOD

If bidders consider that the specifications or Statement of Work contained in the bid solicitation could be improved technically or technologically, bidders are invited to make suggestions, in writing, to the Contracting Authority named in the bid solicitation. Bidders must clearly outline the suggested improvement as well as the reasons for the suggestion. Suggestions that do not restrict the level of competition nor favour a particular bidder will be given consideration provided they are submitted to the Contracting Authority in accordance with the article entitled "Enquiries – Bid Solicitation". Canada will have the right to accept or reject any or all suggestions.

PART 3 – BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

3.1 BID PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS

- a. **Copies of Bid:** Canada requests that bidders provide their bid in separately bound sections as follows :
 - i. Section I: Technical Bid (three (3) hard copies and one (1) soft copy)
 - ii. Section II: Financial Bid (one (1) hard copies and one (1) soft copy)

iii. Section III: Certifications not included in the Technical Bid (one (1) hard copy) If there is a discrepancy between the wording of the soft copy and the hard copy, the wording of the hard copy will have priority over the wording of the soft copy. Prices must appear in the financial bid only. No prices must be indicated in any other section of the bid.

- b. **Format for Bid:** Canada requests that bidders follow the format instructions described below in the preparation of their bid :
 - i. use 8.5 x 11 inch (216 mm x 279 mm) paper;
 - ii. use a numbering system that corresponds to the bid solicitation;
 - iii. include a title page at the front of each volume of the bid that includes the title, date, bid solicitation number, bidder's name and address and contact information of its representative; and
 - iv. Include a table of contents.
- c. **Canada's Policy on Green Procurement:** The policy directing federal departments and agencies to take the necessary steps to incorporate environmental considerations into the procurement process See the <u>Policy on Green Procurement</u> (<u>http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ecologisation-greening/achats-procurement/politique-policy-eng.html</u>). To assist Canada in reaching its objectives, bidders are encouraged to :
 - i. use paper containing fibre certified as originating from a sustainably-managed forest and/or containing minimum 30% recycled content; and
 - ii. use an environmentally-preferable format including black and white printing instead of colour printing, printing double sided/duplex, using staples or clips instead of cerlox, duotangs or binders.

d. Submission of Only One Bid from a Bidding Group:

- i. The submission of more than one bid from members of the same bidding group is not permitted in response to this bid solicitation. If members of a bidding group participate in more than one bid, Canada will set aside all bids received from members of that bidding group.
- ii. For the purposes of this article, "**bidding group**" means all entities (whether those entities include one or more natural persons, corporations, partnerships, limited liability partnerships, etc.) that are related to one another. Regardless of the jurisdiction where any of the entities concerned is incorporated or otherwise formed as a matter of law, entities are considered "**related**" for the purposes of this bid solicitation if:
 - A. they are the same legal entity (i.e., the same natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability partnership, etc.);
 - B. they are "related persons" or "affiliated persons" according to the *Canada Income Tax Act*;
 - C. the entities have now or in the two years before bid closing had a fiduciary relationship with one another (either as a result of an agency arrangement or any other form of fiduciary relationship); or
 - D. the entities otherwise do not deal with one another at arm's length, or each of them does not deal at arm's length with the same third party.

e. Joint Venture Experience:

Except where expressly provided otherwise, at least one member of a joint venture Bidder must meet any given mandatory requirement of this bid solicitation. Joint venture members cannot pool their abilities to satisfy any single mandatory requirement of this bid solicitation. Wherever substantiation of a mandatory requirement is required, the Bidder is requested to indicate which joint venture member satisfies the requirement. Any Bidder with questions regarding the way in which a joint venture bid will be evaluated should raise such questions through the Enquiries process as early as possible during the solicitation period.

Example: A bidder is a joint venture consisting of members X, Y and Z. If a solicitation requires: (a) that the bidder have 3 years of experience providing maintenance services, and (b) that the bidder have 2 years of experience integrating hardware with complex networks, then each of these two requirements can be met by a different member of the joint venture. However, for a single requirement, such as the requirement for 3 years of experience providing maintenance services, the bidder cannot indicate that each of members X, Y and Z has one year of experience, totaling 3 years. Such a response would be declared non-responsive.

3.2 SECTION I : TECHNICAL BID

The technical bid consists of the following:

i. Bid Submission Form :

Bidders are requested to include the Bid Submission Form – Annex "F" with their bids. It provides a common form in which bidders can provide information required for evaluation and contract award, such as a contact name, the Bidder's Procurement Business Number, the Bidder's status under the Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity, etc. Using the form to provide this information is not mandatory, but it is recommended. If Canada determines that the information required by the Bid Submission Form is incomplete or requires correction, Canada will provide the Bidder with an opportunity to do so.

ii. Substantiation of Technical Compliance:

The technical bid must substantiate the compliance with the specific articles of Annex "D", which is the requested format for providing the substantiation. The substantiation must not simply be a repetition of the requirement(s), but must explain and demonstrate how the Bidder will meet the requirements and carry out the required Work. Simply stating that the Bidder or its proposed solution or product complies is not sufficient. Where Canada determines that the substantiation is not complete, the Bidder will be considered non-responsive and disqualified. The substantiation may refer to additional documentation submitted with the bid - this information can be referenced in the "Bidder's Response" column of Annex "F", where Bidders are requested to indicate where in the bid the reference material can be found, including the title of the document, and the page and paragraph numbers; where the reference is not sufficiently precise, Canada may request that the Bidder direct Canada to the appropriate location in the documentation.

iii. For Previous Similar Projects:

Where the bid must include a description of previous similar projects: (i) a

project must have been completed by the Bidder itself (and cannot include the experience of any proposed subcontractor or any affiliate of the Bidder); (ii) a project must have been completed by the bid closing date; (iii) each project description must include, at minimum, the name and either the telephone number or e-mail address of a customer reference; and (iv) if more similar projects are provided than requested, Canada will decide in its discretion which projects will be evaluated. A project will be considered "similar" to the Work to be performed under any resulting contract if the project was for the performance of work that closely matches the TBIPS *descriptions* of the Resource Categories identified in Annex "A" – Statement of Work. Work will be considered to "closely match" if the work in the provided project is described in at least 50% of the points of responsibility listed in the description of the given Resource Category.

iv. For Proposed Resources:

The technical bid must include one (1) résumé for the resources as identified in Annex "D". The same individual must not be proposed for more than one Resource Category. The Technical bid must demonstrate that each proposed individual meets the qualification requirements described (including any educational requirements, work experience requirements, and professional designation or membership requirements). With respect to the proposed resources:

- A. Proposed resources may be employees of the Bidder or employees of a subcontractor, or these individuals may be independent contractors to whom the Bidder would subcontract a portion of the Work.
- B. For educational requirements for a particular degree, designation or certificate, Canada will only consider educational programmes that were successfully completed by the resource by the time of bid closing.
- C. For requirements relating to professional designation or membership, the resource must have the required designation or membership by the time of bid closing and must continue, where applicable, to be a member in good standing of the profession or membership throughout the evaluation period and contract period. Where the designation or membership must be demonstrated through a certification, diploma or degree, such document must be current, valid and issued by the entity specified in this solicitation. If the entity is not specified, the issuer must be an accredited or otherwise recognized body, institution or entity.
- D. For work experience, Canada will not consider experience gained as part of an educational programme, except for experience gained through a formal cooperative programme at a post-secondary institution.

- E. For any requirements that specify a particular time period (e.g., 2 years) of work experience, Canada will disregard any information about experience if the technical bid does not include the relevant dates (month and year) for the experience claimed (i.e., the start date and end date). Canada will evaluate only the duration that the resource actually worked on a project or projects (from his or her start date to end date), instead of the overall start and end date of a project or a combination of projects in which a resource has participated.
- F. For work experience to be considered by Canada, the technical bid must not simply indicate the title of the individual's position, but must demonstrate that the resource has the required work experience by explaining the responsibilities and work performed by the individual while in that position. In situations in which a proposed resource worked at the same time on more than one project, the duration of any overlapping time period will be counted only once toward any requirements that relate to the individual's length of experience

v. Customer Reference Contact Information:

The Bidder must provide customer references who must each confirm, if requested by Canada the facts identified in the Bidder's bid. For each customer reference, the Bidder must, at a minimum, provide the name, the telephone number and e-mail address for a contact person. Bidders are also requested to include the title of the contact person. If there is a conflict between the information provided by the customer reference and the bid, the information provided by the customer reference will be evaluated instead of the information in the bid. If the named individual is unavailable when required during the evaluation period, the Bidder may provide the name and contact information of an alternate contact from the same customer.

3.3 SECTION II : FINANCIAL BID

- a. **Pricing:** Bidders must submit their financial bid in accordance with the Basis of Payment provided in Annex "C" of this bid solicitation. The total amount of Applicable Taxes must be shown separately, if applicable. Unless otherwise indicated, Bidders must include a single, firm, all-inclusive per diem rate in Canadian dollars in each cell requiring an entry in the pricing tables.
- b. Variation in Resource Rates By Time Period: For any given Resource Category, where the financial tables provided by Canada allow different firm rates to be charged for a resource category during different time periods:
 - i. the rate bid must not increase by more than 5% from one time period to the next and
 - ii. the rate bid for the same Resource Category during any subsequent time period must not be lower than the rate bid for the time period that includes the first month of the Initial Contract Period

- c. All Costs to be Included: The financial bid must include all costs for the requirement described in the bid solicitation for the entire Contract Period, including any option periods. The identification of all necessary equipment, software, peripherals, cabling and components required to meet the requirements of the bid solicitation and the associated costs of these items is the sole responsibility of the Bidder.
- d. **Blank Prices:** Bidders are requested to insert "\$0.00" for any item for which it does not intend to charge or for items that are already included in other prices set out in the tables. If the Bidder leaves any price blank, Canada will treat the price as "\$0.00" for evaluation purposes and may request that the Bidder confirm that the price is, in fact, \$0.00. No Bidder will be permitted to add or change a price as part of this confirmation. Any Bidder who does not confirm that the price for a blank item is \$0.00 will be declared non-responsive.

3.4 SECTION III : CERTIFICATIONS

Bidders must submit the certifications required under Part 5 that have not been included in the Technical Bid.

PART 4 – EVALUATION PROCEDURES AND BASIS OF SELECTION

4.1 EVALUATION PROCEDURES

- a. Bids will be evaluated in accordance with the entire requirement of the bid solicitation including the technical and financial evaluation criteria. There are several steps in the evaluation process, which are described below. Even though the evaluation and selection will be conducted in steps, the fact that Canada has proceeded to a later step does not mean that Canada has conclusively determined that the Bidder has successfully passed all the previous steps. Canada may conduct steps of the evaluation in parallel.
- b. An evaluation team composed of representatives of Canada will evaluate the bids on behalf of Canada. Canada may hire any independent consultant, or use any Government resources, to evaluate any bid. Not all members of the evaluation team will necessarily participate in all aspects of the evaluation.
- c. In addition to any other time periods established in the bid solicitation :
 - i. **Requests for Clarifications** : If Canada seeks clarification or verification from the Bidder about its bid, the Bidder will have two (2) working days (or a longer period if specified in writing by the Contracting Authority) to provide the necessary information to Canada. Failure to meet this deadline will result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

- ii. **Requests for Interviews**: If Canada wishes to interview the Bidder and/or any or all of the resources proposed by the Bidder to fulfill the requirements of the bid solicitation, the Bidder will have two (2) working days following notice by the Contracting Authority to make any necessary arrangements (at the Bidder's sole cost) for the interview to take place at a location specified by Canada.
- Requests for Further Information: If Canada requires additional information in order to do any of the following pursuant to the Section entitled "Conduct of Evaluation" in 2003, Standard Instructions - Goods or Services - Competitive Requirements:
 - A. verify any or all information provided by the Bidder in its bid; or
 - B. contact any or all references supplied by the Bidder (e.g., references named in the résumés of individual resources) to verify and validate any information submitted by the Bidder,

The Bidder must provide the information requested by Canada within two (2) working days of a request by the Contracting Authority.

iv. **Extension of Time**: If additional time is required by the Bidder, the Contracting Authority may grant an extension in his or her sole discretion.

4.2 TECHNICAL EVALUATION

a. Mandatory Technical Criteria :

Each bid will be reviewed to determine whether it meets the mandatory requirements of the bid solicitation. Any element of the bid solicitation that is identified specifically with the words "must" or "mandatory" is a mandatory requirement. Bids that do not comply with each and every mandatory requirement will be considered non-responsive and be disqualified. The Mandatory evaluation criteria are described in Annex "D" - Evaluation Criteria.

b. Point-Rated Technical Criteria :

Each bid will be rated by assigning a score to the rated requirements, which are identified in the bid solicitation by the word "rated" or by reference to a score. Bidders who fail to submit complete bids with all the information requested by this bid solicitation will be rated accordingly. The rated requirements are described in Annex "D" - Evaluation Criteria.

c. Reference Checks :

i. If a reference check is performed, Canada will conduct the reference check in writing by e-mail. Canada will send all email reference check requests to contacts supplied by all the Bidders on the same day using the email address provided in the bid. Canada will not award any points unless the response is received within five (5) working days of the date that Canada's email was sent.

- ii. If Canada does not receive a response from the contact person within the five (5) working days, Canada will not contact the Bidder and will not permit the substitution of an alternate contact person.
- iii. Wherever information provided by a reference differs from the information supplied by the Bidder, the information supplied by the reference will be the information evaluated.
- iv. Points will not be allocated and/or a bidder will not meet the mandatory experience requirement (as applicable) if (1) the reference customer states he or she is unable or unwilling to provide the information requested, or (2) the customer reference is not a customer of the Bidder itself (for example, the customer cannot be the customer of an affiliate of the Bidder instead of being a customer of the Bidder itself). Nor will points be allocated or a mandatory met if the customer is itself an affiliate or other entity that does not deal at arm's length with the Bidder.

4.3 FINANCIAL EVALUATION

(a) Unless otherwise specified in the RFP, the financial evaluation will be conducted by calculating the Total Bid Price using the Pricing Tables completed by the bidders. The Bidder must provide firm, all inclusive, per diem rates for the Categories of Personnel being proposed in accordance with the bid solicitation, which may include an initial contract period and option periods. For the first year period of any contract (from date of award) resulting from an RFP against this SA, the applicable firm per diem rates must not exceed those rates specified in Annex "C" - Schedule of Per Diem Rates of the SA Holder's Supply Arrangement for each relevant resource(s). Failure to abide with this condition will result in a proposal being considered non-responsive. Only the Firm Per Diem Rates of proposals that are technically responsive will be considered.

(b) Mandatory Financial Criteria

(i) Formulas in Pricing Tables

If the pricing tables provided to bidders in Annex "C" include any formulae, Canada may re-input the prices provided by bidders into a fresh table, if Canada believes that the formulae may no longer be functioning properly in the version submitted by a bidder.

(ii) Substantiation of Professional Services Rates

In Canada's experience, bidders will from time to time propose rates at the time of bidding for one or more categories of resources that they later refuse to honour, on the basis that these rates do not allow them to recover their own costs and/or make a profit. When evaluating the rates for professional services bid, Canada may, but will have no obligation to, require price support for any rates proposed (either for all or for

specific resource categories). Examples of price support that Canada would consider satisfactory include:

a. documentation (such as billing records) that shows that the Bidder has recently provided and invoiced another customer (with whom the Bidder deals at arm's length) for services similar to the services that would be provided by the relevant resource category, where those services were provided for at least one month and the fees charged are equal to or less than the rate offered to Canada (to protect the privacy of the customer, the Bidder may black out the customer's name and personal information on the invoice submitted to Canada);

b. a signed contract between the Bidder and an individual qualified (based on the qualifications described in this bid solicitation) to provide services under the relevant resource category, where the amount payable under that contract by the Bidder to the resource is equal to or less than the rate bid for that resource category;

c. a signed contract with a subcontractor who will perform the work under any resulting contract, which provides that the required services will be provided at a rate that is equal to or less than the rate bid for the relevant resource category (and where the resource meets all the qualifications described in this bid solicitation); or

d. details regarding the salary paid to and benefits provided to the individuals employed by the Bidder qualified (based on the qualifications described in this bid solicitation) to provide services under the relevant resource category, where the amount of compensation, when converted to a per diem or hourly rate (as applicable), is equal to or less than the rate bid for that resource category.

Once Canada requests substantiation of the rates bid for any resource category, it is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to submit information (either the information described in the examples above, or other information that demonstrates that it will be able to recover its own costs based on the rates it has proposed) that will allow Canada to determine whether it can rely, with confidence, on the Bidder's ability to provide the required services at the rates bid, while, at a minimum, recovering its own costs. Where Canada determines that the information provided by the Bidder does not demonstrate the Bidder's ability to recover its own costs in providing the relevant resource, Canada may declare the bid non-compliant, if the rate bid is at least 20% of or lower than the median price bid by compliant bidders for the first year of the resulting contract for the relevant resource(s).Only the Firm Per Diem Rates of proposals that are technically responsive will be considered.

4.4 BASIS OF SELECTION

Basis of Selection - Highest Combined Rating Technical Merit (70%) and Price (30%)

- 1. To be declared responsive, a bid must:
 - a. comply with all the requirements of the bid solicitation;
 - b. meet all mandatory criteria; and

c. obtain the required minimum of 60% points overall for the technical evaluation criteria which are subject to point rating. The rating is performed on a scale of 165 points.

- 2. Bids not meeting (a), (b) and (c) will be declared non-responsive.
- 3. The evaluation will be based on the highest responsive combined rating of technical merit and price. The ratio will be 70% for the technical merit and 30% for the price.
- 4. To establish the technical merit score, the overall technical score for each responsive bid will be determined as follows: total number of points obtained / maximum number of points available multiplied by the ratio of 70%.
- 5. To establish the pricing score, each responsive bid will be prorated against the lowest evaluated price and the ratio of 30%.
- 6. For each responsive bid, the technical merit score and the pricing score will be added to determine its combined rating.
- 7. Neither the responsive bid obtaining the highest technical score nor the one with the lowest evaluated price will necessarily be accepted. The responsive bid with the highest combined rating of technical merit and price will be recommended for award of a contract.

The table below illustrates an example where all three bids are responsive and the selection of the contractor is determined by a 70/30 ratio of technical merit and price, respectively. The total available points equal 135 and the lowest evaluated price is \$45,000.

Basis of Selection - Highest Combined Rating Technical Merit (70%) and Price (30%)					
	Bidder				
	Bidder 1	Bidder 2	Bidder 3		
Overall Technical Score	115/135	89/135	92/135		
Bid Evaluated Price	\$55,000.00	\$50,000.00	\$45,000.00		
Calculations					
Technical Merit Score	115/135 x 70 = 59.63	89/135 x 70 = 46.15	92/135 x 70 = 47.70		
Pricing Score	45/55 x 30 = 24.55	45/50 x 30 = 27.00	45/45 x 30 = 30.00		
Combined Rating	84.18	73.15	77.70		
Overall Rating	1st	3rd	2nd		

Basis of Selection - Highest Combined Rating Technical Merit (70%) and Price (30%)

PART 5 – CERTIFICATIONS

Bidders must provide the required certifications to be awarded a contract. Canada will declare a bid non-responsive if the required certifications are not completed and submitted in accordance with the articles below. Refer to additional certifications in Annex "E"

Compliance with the certifications bidders provide to Canada is subject to verification by Canada during the bid evaluation period (before award of a contract) and after award of a contract. The Contracting Authority will have the right to ask for additional information to verify bidders' compliance with the certifications before award of a contract. The bid will be declared non-responsive if any certification made by the Bidder is untrue, whether made knowingly or unknowingly. Failure to comply with the certifications or to comply with the request of the Contracting Authority for additional information will also render the bid non-responsive. The certifications listed below should be completed and submitted with the bid, but may be submitted afterwards. If any of these required certifications is not completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will so inform the Bidder and provide the Bidder with a time frame within which to meet the requirement. Failure to comply with the request of the Contracting Authority and meet the requirement within that time period will render the bid non-responsive.

5.1 FEDERAL CONTRACTORS PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYMENT EQUITY – BID CERTIFICATION

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, is not named on the Federal Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid" list

(http://www.labour.gc.ca/eng/standards_equity/eq/emp/fcp/list/inelig.shtml) available from <u>Human Resources and Skills Development Canada (HRSDC) - Labour's</u> website

Canada will have the right to declare a bid non-responsive if the Bidder, or any member of the Bidder if the Bidder is a Joint Venture, appears on the <u>*"FCP Limited Eligibility to Bid"*</u> list at the time of contract award.

5.2 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RESOURCES

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that, should it be awarded a contract as a result of the bid solicitation, every individual proposed in its bid will be available to perform the Work as required by Canada's representatives and at the time specified in the bid solicitation or agreed to with Canada's representatives.

- a. By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that all the information provided in the résumés and supporting material submitted with its bid, particularly the information pertaining to education, achievements, experience and work history, has been verified by the Bidder to be true and accurate. Furthermore, the Bidder warrants that every individual proposed by the Bidder for the requirement is capable of performing the Work described in the resulting contract.
- b. By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that all the information provided in the résumés and supporting material submitted with its bid, particularly the information pertaining to education, achievements, experience and work history, has been verified by the Bidder to be true and accurate. Furthermore, the Bidder warrants

that every individual proposed by the Bidder for the requirement is capable of performing the Work described in the resulting contract.

5.3 CERTIFICATION OF LANGUAGE - English Essential

By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that, should it be awarded a contract as result of the bid solicitation, every individual proposed in its bid will be fluent in English. The individual(s) proposed must be able to communicate orally and in writing in English without any assistance and with minimal errors.

PART 6 – SECURITY, FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

6.1 SECURITY REQUIREMENT

The Contractor is required to be security cleared at the level of **Reliability Status** as verified by the Personnel Security Unit (PSU) of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) before contract award.

The Bidder recommended for award must:

- a) Provide personnel data including the full name, date of birth, present address and other data as requested by the RCMP representative, for each person working on this project if requested. This information will be used for security clearance purposes. Fingerprinting may be required. This information should be provided within 3 days of request.
- b) Ensure that all of the Bidder's proposed resources requiring access to classified or protected information, assets or sensitive work site(s) hold a valid **Reliability Status** as verified by the Personnel Security Unit (PSU) of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP).

The Contractor SHALL NOT remove or make copies of any DESIGNATED or CLASSIFIED information or assets from the identified work site(s).

PART 7 – RESULTING CONTRACT CLAUSES

The following clauses apply to and form part of any contract resulting from the bid solicitation.

7.1 REQUIREMENT

a. The Contractor agrees to supply to the Client the services described in the Contract, including the Statement of Work, in accordance with and at the prices set out in the Contract. This includes providing professional services, as and when requested by

Canada, to one or more locations to be designated by Canada, excluding any locations in areas subject to any of the Comprehensive Land Claims Agreements.

- b. Client(s): Under the Contract, the "Client" is the RCMP.
- c. **Reorganization of Client**: The Contractor's obligation to perform the Work will not be affected by (and no additional fees will be payable as a result of) the renaming, reorganization, reconfiguration, or restructuring of any Client. The reorganization, reconfiguration and restructuring of the Client includes the privatization of the Client, its merger with another entity, or its dissolution, where that dissolution is followed by the creation of another entity or entities with mandates similar to the original Client. In connection with any form of reorganization, Canada may designate another department or government body as the Contracting Authority or Technical Authority, as required to reflect the new roles and responsibilities associated with the reorganization.
- d. **Defined Terms**: Words and expressions defined in the General Conditions or Supplemental General Conditions and used in the Contract have the meanings given to them in the General Conditions or Supplemental General Conditions. Any reference to an Identified User in the Supply Arrangement is a reference to the Client. Also, any reference to a "deliverable" or "deliverables" includes all documentation outlined in this Contract. A reference to a "local office" of the Contractor means an office having at least one full time employee that is not a shared resource working at that location.

Location of Services: Services must be delivered as requested to the locations specified in the Contract, which delivery locations must exclude any area subject to one of the Comprehensive Land Claim Agreements (CLCAs).

7.2 STANDARD CLAUSES AND CONDITIONS

All clauses and conditions identified in the Contract by number, date and title are set out in the <u>Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual</u> issued by Public Works and Government Services Canada.

a. General Conditions :

2035 (2014-03-01), General Conditions – Higher Complexity – Services, apply to and form part of the Contract.

The text under Subsection 04 of Section 41 – Code of Conduct and Certifications, of General

Conditions 2035 referenced above is replaced by:

During the entire period of the Contract, the Contractor must diligently update, by written notice to the Contracting Authority, the list of names of all individuals who are directors of the Contractor whenever there is a change. As well, whenever requested by Canada, the Contractor must provide the corresponding Consent Forms.

With respect to Section 30 - Termination for Convenience, of General Conditions 2035, unless already present, Subsection 04 is deleted and replaced with the following Subsections 04, 05 and 06:

4. The total of the amounts, to which the Contractor is entitled to be paid under this section, together with any amounts paid, due or becoming due to the Contractor must not exceed the Contract Price.

5. Where the Contracting Authority terminates the entire Contract and the Articles of Agreement include a Minimum Work Guarantee, the total amount to be paid to the Contractor under the Contract will not exceed the greater of

(a) the total amount the Contractor may be paid under this section, together with any amounts paid, becoming due other than payable under the Minimum Revenue Guarantee, or due to the Contractor as of the date of termination, or

(b) the amount payable under the Minimum Work Guarantee, less any amounts paid, due or otherwise becoming due to the Contractor as of the date of termination.

6. The Contractor will have no claim for damages, compensation, loss of profit, allowance arising out of any termination notice given by Canada under this section except to the extent that this section expressly provides. The Contractor agrees to repay immediately to Canada the portion of any advance payment that is unliquidated at the date of the termination.

b. Supplemental General Conditions :

The following Supplemental General Conditions:

- i. 4006 (2010-08-16), Supplemental General Conditions Contractor to Own Intellectual Property Rights in Foreground In-formation;
- ii. 4008 (2008-12-12), Supplemental General Conditions Personal Information;

7.3 SECURITY REQUIREMENT

The Contractor is required to be security cleared at the level of **Reliability Status** as verified by the Personnel Security Unit (PSU) of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) per Annex "B".

The Contractor SHALL NOT remove or make copies of any DESIGNATED or CLASSIFIED information or assets from the identified work site(s).

7.4 CONTRACT PERIOD

- a. **Contract Period** : The "**Contract Period**" is the entire period of time during which the Contractor is obliged to perform the Work, which includes :
 - i. The "Initial Contract Period", which begins on the date the Contract is awarded and ends [one (1) year after]; and
 - ii. the period during which the Contract is extended, if Canada chooses to exercise any options set out in the Contract.

b. Option to Extend the Contract :

i. The Contractor grants to Canada the irrevocable option to extend the term of the Contract by up to two (2) additional one (1) year period(s) under the same terms and conditions. The Contractor agrees that, during the extended period of

the Contract, it will be paid in accordance with the applicable provisions set out in the Basis of Payment.

ii. Canada may exercise this option at any time by sending a written notice to the Contractor before the expiry date of the Contract. The option may only be exercised by the Contracting Authority, and will be evidenced, for administrative purposes only, through a formal contract amendment.

7.5 AUTHORITIES

a. Contracting Authority

The Contracting Authority for the Contract is: Name: Jordan McKenna Title: Procurement and Contracting Officer Organization: RCMP Address: 73 Leikin Dr. Telephone: 613-843-5518 Facsimile: 613-825-0082 E-mail address: jordan.mckenna@rcmp-grc.gc.ca The Contracting Authority is responsible for the management of the Contract and any changes to the Contract must be authorized in writing by the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must not perform work in excess of or outside the scope of the Contract based on verbal or written requests or instructions from anybody other than the Contracting Authority.

b. Technical Authority

The Technical Authority for the Contract is **TBD**:

The Technical Authority is the representative of the department or agency for whom the Work is being carried out under the Contract and is responsible for all matters concerning the technical content of the Work under the Contract. Technical matters may be discussed with the Technical Authority; however, the Technical Authority has no authority to authorize changes to the scope of the Work. Changes to the scope of the Work can only be made through a contract amendment issued by the Contracting Authority.

c. Contractor's Representative

Note to Bidders: The Contractor's Representative, Contracting Authority, Technical Authority and contact information will be identified at the time of contract award.

7.6 PAYMENT

a. Basis of Payment

i. **Professional Services:** For the provision of professional services the Contractor will be paid for actual time worked, in accordance with the firm all-inclusive per diem rates set out in Annex "C", Basis of Payment, Applicable

Taxes extra. Partial days will be prorated based on actual hours worked based on a 7.5-hour workday

ii. Pre-Authorized Travel and Living Expenses :

Canada will not pay any travel or living expenses associated with performing the Work.

- iii. Applicable Taxes : Estimated Cost: [\$TBD]
- iv. **Competitive Award**: The Contractor acknowledges that the Contract has been awarded as a result of a competitive process. No additional charges will be allowed to compensate for errors, oversights, misconceptions or underestimates made by the Contractor when bidding for the Contract.
- v. **Professional Services Rates**: In Canada's experience, bidders from time to time propose rates at the time of bidding for one or more Resource Categories that they later refuse to honour, on the basis that these rates do not allow them to recover their own costs and/or make a profit. This denies Canada of the benefit of the awarded contract. If the Contractor does not respond or refuses to provide an individual with the qualifications described in the Contract (or proposes instead to provide someone from an alternate category at a different rate), whether or not Canada terminates the Contract as a whole, Canada may impose sanctions or take other measures in accordance with the PWGSC Vendor Performance Policy (or equivalent) then in effect, which may include an assessment that results in conditions applied against the Contractor to be fulfilled before doing further business with Canada, or full debarment of the Contractor from bidding on future requirements.
- vi. **Purpose of Estimates**: All estimated costs contained in the Contract are included solely for the administrative purposes of Canada and do not represent a commitment on the part of Canada to purchase services in these amounts. Any commitment to purchase specific amounts or values of services are described elsewhere in the Contract.
- b. Limitation of Expenditure Canada's total liability to the Contractor under the Contract must not exceed the amount set out on page one of the Contract, less any Applicable taxes. With respect to the amount set out on page one of the Contract, Customs duties are included and Harmonized Sales Tax is included, if applicable. Any commitments to purchase specific amounts or values of goods or services are described elsewhere in the Contract.
 - i. No increase in the total liability of Canada or in the price of the Work resulting from any design changes, modifications or interpretations of the Work, will be authorized or paid to the Contractor unless these design changes, modifications or interpretations have been approved, in writing, by the Contracting Authority before their incorporation into the Work. The Contractor must not perform any work or provide any service that would result in Canada's total liability being

exceed before obtaining the written approval of the Contracting Authority. The Contractor must notify the Contracting Authority in writing as to the adequacy of this sum when:

- A. It is 75 percent committed, or
- B. 4 months before the Contract expiry date, or
- C. as soon as the Contractor considers that the contract funds provided are inadequate for the completion of the Work, whichever comes first.
- ii. If the notification is for inadequate contract funds, the Contractor must provide to the Contracting Authority a written estimate for the additional funds required. Providing this information does not increase Canada's liability.

c. Monthly Payment

Canada will pay the Contractor on a monthly basis for work performed during the month covered by the invoice in accordance with the payment provisions of the Contract if :

- i. an accurate and complete invoice and any other documents required by the Contract have been submitted in accordance with the invoicing instructions provided in the Contract;
- ii. all such documents have been verified by Canada;
- iii. the Work performed has been accepted by Canada.

d. Time Verification

Time charged and the accuracy of the Contractor's time recording system are subject to verification by Canada, before or after payment is made to the Contractor. If verification is done after payment, the Contract must repay any overpayment, at Canada's request.

f. No Responsibility to Pay for Work not performed due to Closure of Government Offices

- i. Where the Contractor, its employees, subcontractors, or agents are providing services on government premises under the Contract and those premises are inaccessible because of the evacuation or closure of government offices, and as a result no work is performed, Canada is not responsible for paying the Contractor for work that otherwise would have been performed if there had been no evacuation or closure.
- ii. If, as a result of any strike or lock-out, the Contractor or its employees, subcontractors or agents cannot obtain access to government premises and, as a result, no work is performed, Canada is not responsible for paying the Contractor for work that otherwise would have been performed if the Contractor had been able to gain access to the premises.

7.7 INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS

- a. The Contractor must submit invoices in accordance with the information required in the General Conditions.
- b. The Contractor's invoice must include a separate line item for each subparagraph in the Basis of Payment provision, and must show all applicable Task Authorization numbers.
- c. By submitting invoices the Contractor is certifying that the goods and services have been delivered and that all charges are in accordance with the Basis of Payment provision of the Contract, including any charges for work performed by subcontractors.
- d. The Contractor must provide the original of each invoice to the Technical Authority, and a copy to the Contracting Authority.

7.8 CERTIFICATIONS

a. Compliance with the certifications provided by the Contractor in its bid or any TA quotation is a condition of the Contract and subject to verification by Canada during the entire Contract Period. If the Contractor does not comply with any certification or it is determined that any certification made by the Contractor is untrue, whether made knowingly or unknowingly, Canada has the right, under the default provision of the Contract, to terminate the Contract for default.

7.9 APPLICABLE LAWS

The Contract must be interpreted and governed, and the relations between the parties determined, by the laws in force in the province of Ontario.

7.10 PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS

If there is a discrepancy between the wording of any documents that appear on the following list, the wording of the document that first appears on the list has priority over the wording of any document that appears later on the list:

- a. these Articles of Agreement, including any individual SACC clauses incorporated by reference in these Articles of Agreement;
- b. Supplemental general conditions, in the following order :
 - i. 4006 (2010-08-16), Supplemental General Conditions Contractor to Own Intellectual Property Rights in Foreground Information;
 - ii. 4008 (2008-12-12), Supplemental General Conditions Personal Information;
- c. General Conditions 2035 (2014-03-01);
- d. Annex "A", Statement of Work ;
- e. Annex "C", Basis of Payment;
- f. Annex "B", Security Requirements Check List ;
- g. Supply Arrangement Number EN578-055605/xxx/EI (the "Supply Arrangement")
- h. the Contractor's bid dated [TBD].

7.11 FOREIGN NATIONALS (CANADIAN CONTRACTOR)

SACC Manual clause A2000C (2006-06-16) Foreign Nationals (Canadian Contractor)

7.12 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

A. Compliance with Insurance Requirements

- 1. The Contractor must comply with the insurance requirements specified in this Article. The Contractor must maintain the required insurance coverage for the duration of the Contract. Compliance with the insurance requirements does not release the Contractor from or reduce its liability under the Contract.
- 2. The Contractor is responsible for deciding if additional insurance coverage is necessary to fulfill its obligation under the Contract and to ensure compliance with any applicable law. Any additional insurance coverage is at the Contractor's expense, and for its own benefit and protection.
- 3. The Contractor should forward to the Contracting Authority within ten (10) days after the date of award of the Contract a Certificate of Insurance evidencing the insurance coverage. Coverage must be placed with an Insurer licensed to carry out business in Canada and the Certificate of Insurance must confirm that the insurance policy complying with the requirements is in force. If the Certificate of Insurance has not been completed and submitted as requested, the Contracting Authority will so inform the Contractor and provide the Contractor with a time frame within which to meet the requirement. Failure to comply with the request of the Contracting Authority and meet the requirement within the time period will constitute a default under the General Conditions. The Contractor must, if requested by the Contracting Authority, forward to Canada a certified true copy of all applicable insurance policies.

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

- 1. The Contractor must obtain Commercial General Liability Insurance, and maintain it in force throughout the duration of the Contract, in an amount usual for a contract of this nature, but for not less than \$2,000,000 per accident or occurrence and in the annual aggregate.
- 2. The Commercial General Liability policy must include the following:
 - Additional Insured: Canada is added as an additional insured, but only with respect to liability arising out of the Contractor's performance of the Contract. The interest of Canada should read as follows: Canada, as represented by Public Works and Government Services Canada.
 - b. Bodily Injury and Property Damage to third parties arising out of the operations of the Contractor.

- c. Products and Completed Operations: Coverage for bodily injury or property damage arising out of goods or products manufactured, sold, handled, or distributed by the Contractor and/or arising out of operations that have been completed by the Contractor.
- d. Personal Injury: While not limited to, the coverage must include Violation of Privacy, Libel and Slander, False Arrest, Detention or Imprisonment and Defamation of Character.
- e. Cross Liability/Separation of Insureds: Without increasing the limit of liability, the policy must protect all insured parties to the full extent of coverage provided. Further, the policy must apply to each Insured in the same manner and to the same extent as if a separate policy had been issued to each.
- f. Blanket Contractual Liability: The policy must, on a blanket basis or by specific reference to the Contract, extend to assumed liabilities with respect to contractual provisions.
- g. Employees and, if applicable, Volunteers must be included as Additional Insured.
- h. Employers' Liability (or confirmation that all employees are covered by Worker's compensation (WSIB) or similar program)
- i. Broad Form Property Damage including Completed Operations: Expands the Property Damage coverage to include certain losses that would otherwise be excluded by the standard care, custody or control exclusion found in a standard policy.
- j. Notice of Cancellation: The Insurer will endeavour to provide the Contracting Authority thirty (30) days written notice of policy cancellation.
- k. If the policy is written on a claims-made basis, coverage must be in place for a period of at least 12 months after the completion or termination of the Contract.
- I. Owners' or Contractors' Protective Liability: Covers the damages that the Contractor becomes legally obligated to pay arising out of the operations of a subcontractor.
- m. Advertising Injury: While not limited to, the endorsement must include coverage for piracy or misappropriation of ideas, or infringement of copyright, trademark, title or slogan.

C. Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance

- 1. The Contractor must obtain Errors and Omissions Liability (a.k.a. Professional Liability) insurance, and maintain it in force throughout the duration of the Contract, in an amount usual for a contract of this nature but for not less than \$1,000,000 per loss and in the annual aggregate, inclusive of defence costs.
- 2. If the Professional Liability insurance is written on a claims-made basis, coverage must be in place for a period of at least 12 months after the completion or termination of the Contract.
- 3. The following endorsement must be included:

Notice of Cancellation: The Insurer will endeavour to provide the Contracting Authority thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation.

7.13 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY – INFORMATION MANAGEMENT/INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

a. This section applies despite any other provision of the Contract and replaces the section of the general conditions entitled "Liability". Any reference in this section to damages caused by the Contractor also includes damages caused by its employees, as well as its subcontractors, agents, and representatives, and any of their employees. This section applies regardless of whether the claim is based in contract, tort, or another cause of action. The Contractor is not liable to Canada with respect to the performance of or failure to perform the Contract, except as described in this section and in any section of the Contract pre-establishing any liquidated damages. The Contractor is only liable for indirect, special or consequential damages to the extent described in this Article, even if it has been made aware of the potential for those damages.

b. First Party Liability :

- i. The Contractor is fully liable for all damages to Canada, including indirect, special or consequential damages, caused by the Contractor's performance or failure to perform the Contract that relate to :
 - A. any infringement of intellectual property rights to the extent the Contractor breaches the section of the general conditions entitled "Intellectual Property Infringement and Royalties";
 - B. physical injury, including death.
- ii. The Contractor is liable for all direct damages affecting real or tangible personal property owned, possessed, or occupied by Canada.
- iii. Each of the Parties is liable for all direct damages resulting from its breach of confidentiality under the Contract. Each of the Parties is also liable for all indirect, special or consequential damages in respect of its unauthorized disclosure of the other Party's trade secrets (or trade secrets of a third party

provided by one Party to another under the Contract) relating to information technology.

- iv. The Contractor is liable for all direct damages relating to any encumbrance or claim relating to any portion of the Work for which Canada has made any payment. This does not apply to encumbrances or claims relating to intellectual property rights, which are addressed under (i.A) above.
- v. The Contractor is also liable for any other direct damages to Canada caused by the Contractor in any way relating to the Contract, including :
 - A. any breach of the warranty obligations under the Contract, up to the total amount paid by Canada (including any applicable taxes) for the goods and services affected by the breach of warranty; and
 - B. any other direct damages, including all identifiable direct costs to Canada associated with re-procuring the Work from another party if the Contract is terminated either in whole or in part for default, up to an aggregate maximum for this subparagraph (B) of the greater of [.75] times the total estimated cost (meaning the dollar amount shown on the first page of the Contract in the cell titled "Total Estimated Cost" or shown on each call-up, purchase order or other document used to order goods or services under this instrument), or \$1,000,000.00.

In any case, the total liability of the Contractor under paragraph (v) will not exceed the total estimated cost (as defined above) for the Contract or \$1,000,000.00, whichever is more.

vi. If Canada's records or data are harmed as a result of the Contractor's negligence or willful act, the Contractor's only liability is, at the Contractor's own expense, to restore Canada's records and data using the most recent backup kept by Canada. Canada is responsible for maintaining an adequate backup of its records and data.

c. Third Party Claims :

- i. Regardless of whether a third party makes its claim against Canada or the Contractor, each Party agrees that it is liable for any damages that it causes to any third party in connection with the Contract as set out in a settlement agreement or as finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, where the court determines that the Parties are jointly and severally liable or that one Party is solely and directly liable to the third party. The amount of the liability will be the amount set out in the settlement agreement or determined by the court to have been the Party's portion of the damages to the third party. No settlement agreement is binding on a Party unless its authorized representative has approved the agreement in writing.
- ii. If Canada is required, as a result of joint and several liability, to pay a third party in respect of damages caused by the Contractor, the Contractor must reimburse Canada by the amount finally determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be the Contractor's portion of the damages to the third party. However, despite paragraph (i), with respect to special, indirect, and consequential damages of third parties covered by this Section, the Contractor is only liable for reimbursing

Canada for the Contractor's portion of those damages that Canada is required by a court to pay to a third party as a result of joint and several liability that relate to the infringement of a third party's intellectual property rights; physical injury of a third party, including death; damages affecting a third party's real or tangible personal property; liens or encumbrances on any portion of the Work; or breach of confidentiality.

iii. The Parties are only liable to one another for damages to third parties to the extent described in this paragraph c.

7.14 JOINT VENTURE

- a. The Contractor confirms that the name of the joint venture is ______ and that it is comprised of the following members:
- b. With respect to the relationship among the members of the joint venture Contractor, each member agrees, represents and warrants (as applicable) that:
 - i. _____ has been appointed as the "representative member" of the joint venture Contractor and has fully authority to act as agent for each member regarding all matters relating to the Contract;
 - ii. by giving notice to the representative member, Canada will be considered to have given notice to all the members of the joint venture Contractor; and
 - iii. all payments made by Canada to the representative member will act as a release by all the members.
- c. All the members agree that Canada may terminate the Contract in its discretion if there is a dispute among the members that, in Canada's opinion, affects the performance of the Work in any way.
- d. All the members are jointly and severally or solidarily liable for the performance of the entire Contract.
- e. The Contractor acknowledges that any change in the membership of the joint venture (i.e., a change in the number of members or the substitution of another legal entity for an existing member) constitutes an assignment and is subject to the assignment provisions of the General Conditions.
- f. The Contractor acknowledges that all security and controlled goods requirements in the Contract, if any, apply to each member of the joint venture Contractor.

Note to Bidders: This Article will be deleted if the bidder awarded the contract is not a joint venture. If the contractor is a joint venture, this clause will be completed with information provided in its bid.

7.15 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – GENERAL

a. The Contractor must provide professional services on request as specified in this contract. All resources provided by the Contractor must meet the qualifications described in the Contract (including those relating to previous experience, professional

designation, education, and language proficiency and security clearance) and must be competent to provide the required services by any delivery dates described in the Contract.

- b. If the Contractor fails to deliver any deliverable (excluding delivery of a specific individual) or complete any task described in the Contract on time, in addition to any other rights or remedies available to Canada under the Contract or the law, Canada may notify the Contractor of the deficiency, in which case the Contractor must submit a written plan to the Technical Authority within ten working days detailing the actions that the Contractor will undertake to remedy the deficiency. The Contractor must prepare and implement the plan at its own expense.
- c. In General Conditions 2035, the Section titled "Replacement of Specific Individuals" is deleted and the following applies instead:

Replacement of Specific Individuals

- If the Contractor is unable to provide the services of any specific individual identified in the Contract to perform the services, the Contractor must within five (5) working days of the individual's departure or failure to commence Work (or, if Canada has requested the replacement, within ten working days of Canada's notice of the requirement for a replacement) provide to the Contracting Authority:
 - a. the name, qualifications and experience of a proposed replacement immediately available for Work; and
 - b. security information on the proposed replacement as specified by Canada, if applicable.

The replacement must have qualifications and experience that meet or exceed those obtained for the original resource.

- 2. Subject to an Excusable Delay, where Canada becomes aware that a specific individual identified under the Contract to provide services has not been provided or is not performing, the Contracting Authority may elect to:
 - a. exercise Canada's rights or remedies under the Contract or at law, including terminating the Contract for default under Section titled "Default of the Contractor", or
 - b. assess the information provided under (c) (i) above or, if it has not yet been provided, require the Contractor propose a replacement to be rated by the Technical Authority. The replacement must have qualifications and experience that meet or exceed those obtained for the original resource and be acceptable to Canada. Upon assessment of the replacement, Canada may accept the replacement, exercise the rights in (ii) (A) above, or require another replacement in accordance with this subarticle (c).
- 3. Where an Excusable Delay applies, Canada may require (c) (ii) (B) above instead of terminating under the "Excusable Delay" Section. An Excusable Delay does not include resource unavailability due to allocation of the resource to another Contract or project (including those for the Crown) being performed by the Contractor or any

of its affiliates. The Contractor must not, in any event, allow performance of the Work by unauthorized replacement persons. The Contracting Authority may order that a resource stop performing the Work. In such a case, the Contractor must immediately comply with the order. The fact that the Contracting Authority does not order that a resource stop performing the Work does not relieve the Contractor from its responsibility to meet the requirements of the Contract.

4. The obligations in this article apply despite any changes that Canada may have made to the Client's operating environment.

7.16 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR PRE-EXISTING SOFTWARE

- a. **Pre-Existing Software** : The "**Pre-Existing Software**" consists of the computer programs listed in Annex "A", which are either proprietary to Canada or licensed to Canada by a third party, in respect of which Canada requires certain professional services.
- b. **No Software Development**: The Contractor is not required to develop, program or provide additional software code related to the Pre-Existing Software as part of the Work performed under the Contract.

7.17 SAFEGUARDING ELECTRONIC MEDIA

- a. Before using them on Canada's equipment or sending them to Canada, the Contractor must use a regularly updated product to scan electronically all electronic media used to perform the Work for computer viruses and other coding intended to cause malfunctions. The Contractor must notify Canada if any electronic media used for the Work are found to contain computer viruses or other coding intended to cause malfunctions.
- b. If magnetically recorded information or documentation is damaged or lost while in the Contractor's care or at any time before it is delivered to Canada in accordance with the Contract, including accidental erasure, the Contractor must immediately replace it at its own expense.

7.18 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

The Contractor made statements regarding its own and its proposed resources experience and expertise in its bid that resulted in the award of the Contract. The Contractor represents and warrants that all those statements are true and acknowledges that Canada relied on those statements in awarding the Contract. The Contractor also represents and warrants that it has, and all its resources and subcontractors that perform the Work have, and at all times during the Contract Period they will have, the skills, qualifications, expertise and experience necessary to perform and manage the Work in accordance with the Contract, and that the Contractor (and any resources or subcontractors it uses) has previously performed similar services for other customers.

7.19 GOVERNMENT PROPERTY

Canada agrees to supply the Contractor with the items listed below (the "**Government Property**"). The section of the General Conditions entitled "Government Property" also applies to the use of the Government Property by the Contractor. a. Contractors will be provided a workspace and access to the RCMP Office Support System (email, scheduling, Word Perfect Office v12, LAN managed disk space) including limited access to the Internet. Full internet access is available.

7.20 IDENTIFICATION PROTOCOL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Contractor will be responsible for ensuring that each of its agents, representatives or subcontractors (hereinafter referred to as Contractor Representatives) complies with the following self-identification requirements:

- a. Contractor Representatives who attend a Government of Canada meeting (whether internal or external to Canada's offices) must identify if an individual is not a permanent employee of the Contractor prior to the commencement of the meeting, to ensure that each meeting participant is aware of the fact that the individual is not a Contractor permanent employee;
- b. During the performance of any Work at a Government of Canada site, each Contractor Representative must be clearly identified at all times as being a Contractor Representative; and
- c. If a Contractor Representative requires the use of the Government of Canada's e-mail system in the performance of the Work, then the individual must clearly identify him or herself as an agent or subcontractor of the Contractor in all electronic mail in the signature block as well as under "Properties." This identification protocol must also be used in all other correspondence, communication, and documentation.
- d. If Canada determines that the Contractor is in breach of any obligation stated in this Article, upon written notice from Canada the Contractor must submit a written action plan describing corrective measures it will implement to eliminate the recurrence of the problem. The Contractor will have five working days to deliver the action plan to the Client and the Contracting Authority, and twenty working days to rectify the underlying problem.
- e. In addition to any other rights it has under the Contract, Canada may terminate the Contract for default if the corrective measures required of the Contractor described above are not met.

Annex "A" – Statement of Work Title: Application / Software Architect

Background:

The Integrated Information Services (IIS) project / program will deliver, maintain and enhance a system that allows direct and indirect searching of data originating from various RCMP Records Management Systems. This will be achieved through the use of an Extract, Transform and Load (ETL) product, feeding the IDOL search engine which receives requests from a RCMP developed WEB based application.

The resulting system will be deployed in the following RCMP Protected environments: Development, Quality Control and Production.

The RCMP has developed expertise with the Verity product and has limited but growing expertise with the IDOL product.

Scope:

Work must be limited to the IIS Project and Program. In rare circumstances the resource may be asked to assist other projects that use the same technologies.

Secondary effort is to be applied to developing the RCMP expertise in using IDOL. Tertiary efforts are to be applied to Development and Quality Control Section environment architectures, performance testing of IDOL as well as Production support required for IDOL.

Tasks/Technical Specifications:

The contractor must perform the following tasks:

- Review and assist with the configuration of the IDOL product to ensure that the IIS business requirements for searching are met;
- Assist with the configuration and implementation of the IDOL architecture for subsequent IIS releases in multiple environments. This may include providing effort estimates for identified work items;
- Assist and make recommendations for the automation of daily IDOL indexing jobs
- Make recommendations for enhancement of the project architecture for the short, intermediate and long term;
- Provide recommendations for licensing where needed
- Provide recommendations on the day to day operation of a large, nationally implemented IDOL system;
- Knowledge transfer and training of RCMP resource(s);
- Document and test changes/upgrades to the IDOL infrastructure;

- Prepare deployment plan and release notes for IDOL infrastructure deployments
- Assist with debugging IDOL server issues.

RCMP Responsibilities:

The Technical Authority will appoint a TEAM Lead who will be responsible for:

- ensuring that the Contractor has access to the necessary personnel, data, documentation, facilities, and operations to carry out the work;
- monitoring the progress of the work being performed under the Statement of Work;
- providing recommendations to the Technical Authority for the payment of claims, acceptance of deliverables and on any other aspects of the work.

Travel:

There will be no travel outside the National Capital Region required to complete this work.

Constraints:

All work will be conducted at the RCMP's National Headquarters complex located at 1200 Vanier Parkway in Ottawa, Ontario or 73 Leikin Drive, Ottawa, Ontario.

Contractors may not connect non-RCMP equipment to RCMP networks.

Hours of work are generally 8 am to 4 pm Monday to Friday, with limited flexibility.

The working language in the Project Team is predominately English. All written documentation and reports must be in English.

Transportation to and from the location of work is at the Contractors expense. Parking may be available on site and is at the expense of the Contractor. Off-site parking may be available and is at the expense of the Contractor.

Client support:

Contractors will be provided a workspace and access to the RCMP Office Support System (email, scheduling, Word Perfect Office v12, LAN managed disk space) including limited access to the Internet. Full internet access is available.

Current IIS Project documentation as it relates to IDOL will be made available to the Contractor.

There is a development environment with IDOL configured for use by the Project teams. RCMP Subject Matter Experts (SMEs) will be advised to work cooperatively with the Contractor.

Meetings:

Regularly scheduled status and progress meetings will be held with the contractor.

Separate meetings will be held to receive the draft working copies and the draft final copies of the contract deliverables.

Technical meetings with the contractor and RCMP SMEs will be held at the mutual agreement of both groups.

Deliverables:

- 1. Complete an IIS IDOL implementation document that identifies:
 - The recommended IDOL architecture in the Quality Control, Development and Production environments considering the production High Availability (HA) requirement;
 - The recommended and described IDOL configurations to satisfy the IIS business requirements;
 - Description of the IDOL licenses to be deployed in each of the Quality Control, Development and Production environments;
 - How data is ingested, indexed, organized and searched;
 - Recommendations and description for the administration of taxonomies, categories, facets and other search techniques and strategies;
 - Recommendations on how to best configure IDOL to work with IIS's security requirements.

2. Complete an IIS IDOL document that describes in detail all data update and synchronization that occurs as a requirement for indexing. This document will include a definition of each search package and how they are assembled.

3. Complete an IIS IDOL operations document that identifies operational issues and challenges to be managed with respect to a distributed IDOL architecture on a National infrastructure.

Priority of the above documents is in the order in which they are listed. The draft final versions are to be delivered in Microsoft Word at least five (5) working days prior to the end of the contract.

Draft Documents:

One (1) copy of draft documents shall be delivered in hard copy format (hand delivered) or in electronic format via e-mail, as required by the Technical Authority. Hard copies of draft documents shall be unbound and stapled. The Contractor shall confirm with the Technical Authority as to the desired format prior to delivery.

Final Documents:

All final versions of documents shall be delivered in hard copy and electronic format. Hard copy final documents shall be bound in a professional manner (e.g. binders, cerlox, coil, tape bound, etc.) in the following format:

• two (2) bound copies8" x 11 ¹/₂" plain bond paper;

One (1) electronic copy of all final documents shall be delivered in the following format:

- WordPerfect 8.0 or above;
- QuattroPro 8.0 or above;
- MS Word 2010 or above;
- A copy of all reports and documentation shall be provided on completion of the contract, electronically in the format requested on an appropriate media (3½ inch diskettes, CD ROM, etc.).

Annex "B" – Security Requirements Check List (SRCL)

Governmen of Canada		• [Contract Number / Hun		5		
T of Canada du Canada			5	curity Classification / Cas	493-	dant		
		L		Uncleased	ed.		-	
		SECURITY REQUIREMENT			-			
Originating Government De	WATER AND A REPORT	STREET ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL ALL AL	0.21 1	Branch or Directorate / Dir		-	Oleant	
Origitating Government De Ministère du organisme pou			Contraction of the	CIO Sector / Applications	Development	Bran	ch	
a) Subcontract Number / No		the designed of the second	e and Address o	f Subcontractor / Nom et a	dresse du so	us-tra	tarrit.	
Brief Description of Work / To assist with the development								
	1000	10 March 10						
a) WE the supplier require it	ccess to Controlled C	Joods?					No	Ve
Le fournisseur aura-t-il a	cole à des marchand	lass contrôlées?				4	Non	0
Regulations?		military ischnical data subject to	the second second		26a - 3	1	No Non	Ye
Le fournisseur aura-t-il a sur le contrôle des donné	cols à des données h les techniques?	echniques militaires non classifi	ess tree up set	ujetties aux dispositions du	Régierrent			
indicate the type of access	required / Indiquer le			h hadroid coates work a second				
a) Will the supplier and its a Le francismus ainsi cue	mployees require acc ins employees successive	ses to PROTECTED and/or CL is acote à des renseignements	ASSIFIED inform ou & des biens P	nation or assets? ROTEGES ation CLASSI	FIÉS7	Π	No	1 0
(Specify the level of some	as using the chart in (Dependings 7 (c)						
(Specify the level of some	as using the chart in (Dependings 7 (c)					No	Yes
(Specify the layer of acce (Priciner is riversu d'acce b) Will the supplier and its o PROTECTED and/or CL	es using the chart in (to an utilizant le table mployeex (e.g. clean ASSIFIED Information	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7 ers, maintenance personnel) req or seculta la permittad	(c) quire eccess to m	ostriciad access areas? H	o access to	7	Non	Yes
(Specify the level of acce (Pricises is niversuctacco b) Will the suppler and its PROTECTED and/or CL Le burninger, at see any A des rengelongments of	es using the chart in (te en utilizant le table mployees (e.g. clean ASSIFIED information ployde (p. ex. nettoye a des biens PROTE)	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7 ers, maîntenance personnell rec or assets is permitted urs, personnel d'entratien) auro DES atlou CLASSIFIES n'est pa	, c) quire access to m nt-its access & de as autorisé.	ostriciad access areas? H	o access to	7	No Non	
(Specify the invel of acce (Principle is november 2000) b) Will the suppler and its o PROTECTED and/or CL Le burnisseur et ese ann à des renseignements o	es using the chart in (te en utilizant le table mployees (e.g. clean ASSIFIED information ployde (p. ex. nettoye a des biens PROTE)	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7 ers, maîntenance personnell rec or assets is permitted urs, personnel d'entratien) auro DES atlou CLASSIFIES n'est pa	, c) quire access to m nt-its access & de as autorisé.	ostriciad access areas? H	o access to		Non Non	Cu
(Specify the line of acces (Product is rhyseu) (Pace) b) Will the supplier and its e PROTECTED and/or CL. Le foundators at ease and a des remaisprements ou C) is tris a commercial cour S'egiH il d'un contrat de m	es using the chart in (te en utilisant le lable imployees (e.g. clean ASSIFED information ASSIFED information (e.g. ex. nettoye (a des biens PROTE) le or delivery require essagerie ou de livra	Question 7. c) au gut se trouve à la question 7, ers, maittenaires personnel rec or assets is permitted. urs, personnel d'entresien) surco <u>BES ethou CLASSIPIES n'est pu</u> ment with no overnight storage? ison commerciale sens entrepo	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & de as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	ostricted eccess areas? N s zones d'accès restrainter	o access to s? L'accès		No	00
(Specify the line of acces (Product is rhyseu) (Pace) b) Will the supplier and its e PROTECTED and/or CL. Le foundators at ease and a des remaisprements ou C) is tris a commercial cour S'egiH il d'un contrat de m	es using the chart in (te en utilisant le lable imployees (e.g. clean ASSIFED information ASSIFED information (e.g. ex. nettoye (a des biens PROTE) le or delivery require essagerie ou de livra	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7 ers, maîntenance personnell rec or assets is permitted urs, personnel d'entratien) auro DES atlou CLASSIFIES n'est pa	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & de as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	obricial access areas? N a zones d'accès restrainer riformation auquei le foumi	o access to s? L'accès		No	Cu
(Specify the lines of acces (Protections in normal (Tarco b) Will the supplier and its a PROTECTED and/or CL Le fournhouser at see am à des remaingrammenta cou S'agit 4 d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Rassage restrictions / Re-	es using the chart of the en officent to table employees (e.g., chann ASSIFED information ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte (p. ex. netboye the or definery require essengerie ou de livra mation that the supple	Duestion 7. c) ex gut se trouve à la question 7, ex, molificheninos personnel) rec or assets le permitted. um, personnel d'entratien) surco DES etiou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight storage? la commerciale same antrepo ar will be required to access / Inv MATO / OTAM diffusion	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & der as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	obrided eccess area? N a zones d'accès restrainter formation auquei le foum Ponsign	o access to s? L'accès sseur devra s n / Étranger		No	Cu
(Specify the lines of acces (Protection is novement drace (Protection is novement drace b) Will the supplier and its a PROTECTED and/or CL Le tournheaux at see any a des rentel/proments of c) is this a commental cour S'agit-il d'un context de m a) Indicate the type of infor- ania the type of infor- canada b) Release restrictions / Re- no naisese restrictions	es using the chart of the en officent le table employees (e.g., chann ASSIFIED information ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte PROTE) te or definery require essengerie ou de litrat mation that the supple	Question 7. c) ex gut se incure à la question 7, ex, maintennance personnell rec or neasits la permitted. une, personnel d'entrelien) auro dés ellou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overright abrager laon commerciale sens entrepo r will be required to access / Inv NATO / OTAN I diffusion All NATO countries	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & der as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	ostrialed eccess aross? N a zones d'accès restrainte formation acquei la foumi Foneigr No relesse restr	o access to s? L'accès assur dorra s n / Étranger tolions		No	Cu
(Specify the lines of acces (Protections in normal (Tarco b) Will the supplier and its a PROTECTED and/or CL Le fournhouser at see am à des remaingrammenta cou S'agit 4 d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Rassage restrictions / Re-	es using the chart of the en officent le table employees (e.g., chann ASSIFIED information ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte PROTE) te or definery require essengerie ou de litrat mation that the supple	Duestion 7. c) ex gut se trouve à la question 7, ex, molificheninos personnel) rec or assets le permitted. um, personnel d'entratien) surco DES etiou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight storage? la commerciale same antrepo ar will be required to access / Inv MATO / OTAM diffusion	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & der as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	obrided eccess area? N a zones d'accès restrainter formation auquei le foum Ponsign	o access to s? L'accès assur dorra s n / Étranger tolions		No	Cu
(Specify the larvest of acces (Protections in normal disco PROTECTED and/or complex and its a PROTECTED and/or complex as a commercial cour- S'sgil 4 drun context do n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Research the type of inform Canada b) Research the	es using the chart of the en officent le table employees (e.g., chann ASSIFIED information ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte PROTE) te or definery require essengerie ou de litrat mation that the supple	Question 7. c) au gut se incure à la question 7, eu gut se incure à la question 7, eu gut se incure personnel (ren or neasits le permitted, ura, personnel d'entrelien) aurop dés etitou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overright abrager laon commerciale sens entrepo r will be required to access / Inv NATO / OTAN i diffusion All NATO countries	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & der as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	obridied eccess aroun? N a zones d'accès restrainter normation acquei le fourni Pornig No release restr Accune restra	o access to s? L'accès assur dorra s n / Étranger tolions		No	Cu
(Specify the lines of acces (Protection in reveal of acces (Protection in reveal of acces (Protection) and a compared acces (Protection) and a compared acces (Protection) and access of a compared (Protection) and access of a compared (Protection) (Protection) and (Protection) and and	es using the chart of the en officent le table employees (e.g., chann ASSIFIED information ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte (p. ex. netboye ployte PROTE) te or definery require essengerie ou de litrat mation that the supple	Question 7. c) au gut se incure à la question 7, eu gut se incure à la question 7, eu gut se incure personnel (ren or neasits le permitted, ura, personnel d'entrelien) aurop dés etitou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overright abrager laon commerciale sens entrepo r will be required to access / Inv NATO / OTAN i diffusion All NATO countries	. c) quire access to n nt-ils access & der as autorisé. ? acgo do nuik?	obridied eccess aroun? N a zones d'accès restrainter normation acquei le fourni Pornig No release restr Accune restra	o access to s? L'accès assur dorra s n / Étranger tolions		No	Cu
(Specify the lines of acces (Protoken is normal diace (Protoken is normal diace PHOTECTED and/or CL to fourtheaser at see an à des remaisgrammenta cou S'agit 4 d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Release restrictions No nelesse restrictions No nelesse restrictions No nelesse restrictions Not releaseshie À ne pas diffuser Restricted to 7 Limité 4 :	es caling the chart in 0 be en officient to table mployees (e.g. clean ASSIFED information Added blems PROTE/ in or derivery require added blems PROTE/ in or derivery require execution that the suppler informs relatives a la or of the suppler informs relatives a la	Duestion 7. c) ex gut es trouve à la question 7, ex, maîtrenaires personnel) rec or assets le permitte. ura, personnel d'artration) auto DES ethou CLASSIPIES n'est pu maint with ne overnight atorage- te son comvercielle same anthrace in will be required to access / Ins NATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Pestricted to: / Lamité à :	. c) guire access to n nt-les access à de es autorisé. Respo de nuit? diquer le type d'a	normation acquei le fourni Romation acquei le fourni Poreign No relesse restr Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L	o access to 17 L'accès 1860.5 donte e 1 Étranger Etitione on relative		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Periodue in rhvenus d'acce Priodue in rhvenus d'acce b) Will the supplier and its a PHOTECTED ander CL Le fourtheaser et acces a des remais/perments or b) des remais/perments or c) its rise a commercial cours S'sgil 4 d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Release restriction Canada b) Release restriction Canada b) Release restriction context of the second b) Release restriction context of the second context of the secon	es caling the chart in 0 be en officient to table mployees (e.g. clean ASSIFED information Added blems PROTE/ in or derivery require added blems PROTE/ in or derivery require execution that the suppler informs relatives a la or of the suppler informs relatives a la	Duestion 7. e) eu gut ye trouve à la question 7, eu gut ye trouve à la question 7, eu gut ye trouve à la question 7, or assets le permitted. une question de la personnel d'entresient auro dels altou CLASSIPIES n'est pui ment with ne overnight abrage/ in an commerciale same activepo r will be required to access / Inv MATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN	. c) guire access to n nt-les access à de es autorisé. Respo de nuit? diquer le type d'a	adriciéd ecceto arosa? N a zones d'accès restrainter normation acquei le foumi Fornig No release restr Aucune restric à la diffusion	o access to 17 L'accès 1860.5 donte e 1 Étranger Etitione on relative		Non (
(Specify the times of acces (Proteiner in niversul d'acce (Proteiner in niversul d'acce (Proteiner in niver) b) Will the supplier and its a PROTECTED and/or can a le nonextra and the set of an anise and the set of an anise and the set of anises an anisotropy of inform Canada b) Ramsse restrictions / Re- No release restrictions / Re- N	es using the chert in 0 te en utilizant le table mpiloyees (e.g., cleant ASSIPED Information Asserted to the supple e des biens PROTE/ er or delivery require executives ou de tivra mation thet the supple deliver relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is an le(s) pays :	Duestion 7. c) ex gut es trouve à la question 7, ex, maîtrenaires personnel) rec or assets le permitte. ura, personnel d'artration) auto DES ethou CLASSIPIES n'est pu maint with ne overnight atorage- te son comvercielle same anthrace in will be required to access / Ins NATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Pestricted to: / Lamité à :	. c) guire access to n nt-les access à de es autorisé. Respo de nuit? diquer le type d'a	normation acquei le fourni Romation acquei le fourni Poreign No relesse restr Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L	o access to 17 L'accès 1860.5 donte e 1 Étranger Etitione on relative		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Protoken is normal diace (Protoken is normal diace PHOTECTED and/or CL to fourtheaser at see an à des remaisgrammenta cou S'agit 4 d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Release restrictions No nelesse restrictions No nelesse restrictions No nelesse restrictions Not releaseshie À ne pas diffuser Restricted to 7 Limité 4 :	es using the chert in 0 te en utilizant le table mpiloyees (e.g., cleant ASSIPED Information Asserted to the supple e des biens PROTE/ er or delivery require executives ou de tivra mation thet the supple deliver relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is an le(s) pays :	Duestion 7. c) ex gut es trouve à la question 7, ex, maîtrenaires personnel) rec or assets le permitte. ura, personnel d'artration) auto DES ethou CLASSIPIES n'est pu maint with ne overnight atorage- te son comvercielle same anthrace in will be required to access / Ins NATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Pestricted to: / Lamité à :	. c) guire access to n nt-les access à de es autorisé. Respo de nuit? diquer le type d'a	normation acquei le fourni Romation acquei le fourni Poreign No relesse restr Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L	o access to 17 L'accès 1860ur donte a 17 Étranger fotione on relative imété é : imété é :		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Proteins in normal direct (Proteins in normal direct (Proteins in normal direct (Proteins in normal direct) (Proteins in normal direct) (Proteins in the normal din the normal direct) (Proteins	es using the chert in 0 te en utilizant le table mpiloyees (e.g., cleant ASSIPED Information Asserted to the supple e des biens PROTE/ er or delivery require executives ou de tivra mation thet the supple deliver relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is an le(s) pays :	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, er seats le permitte. uns personnel d'artratient auros GES attou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight atorage in an commerciale sens entrepo r will be required to access / Inv MATO / OTAM d'affuation All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Restricted to: / Lantié à Specify country(les): / Précie MATO UNICLASSIFIED NATO UNICLASSIFIED NATO NON CLASSIFIED	. c) guire access to n nt-les access à de es autorisé. Respo de nuit? diquer le type d'a	Internation acquei le foumi formation acquei le foumi Pornigi No release reatin Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L Specify country(PROTECTED A PROTECTED A	o access to 17 L'accès 1890ur donta i 1 Étranger Itélione In relative		Non (
(Specify the line) of acces (Periodue in rhymau (Pace Priodue in rhymau (Pace Priodue in rhymau (Pace b) Will the supplier and its a PRIOTECTED ander CL Le fourtheaser at see arm à des remarkingements or c) is this a commercial cour- S'sgil 4 d'un content de n a) Indicate the type of Infor Canada b) Raissae restrictions (Canada b) Raissae (Canada b) Raissae (Canada can	es using the chert in 0 te en utilizant le table mpiloyees (e.g., cleant ASSIPED Information Asserted to the supple e des biens PROTE/ er or delivery require executives ou de tivra mation thet the supple deliver relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is and tables relatives & is an le(s) pays :	Duestion 7. e) eu gut ye trouve à la question 7, eu gut yeu de la personnel yeu des utor CLASSIPIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight schaged r will be required to access / hre mant with ne overnight schaged r will be required to access / hre NATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Restricted to: / Lantis à Specify country(les): / Précie NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO UNCLASSIFIE NATO RESTRICTED	. c) guire access to n nt-les access to n models a dei- seque de nuit? diquer le type d'a diquer le type d'a er le(s) pays :	normation sugget is found formation sugget is found formation sugget is found formation No release real Aucune restricted a ta diffusion Restricted to: / L Specify country	o access to 17 L'accès 1890ur donta i 1 Étranger Itélione In relative		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Precident in normal different Print and the supplier and the e PROTECTED and/or CL to fourhasser at sees arm à des renasionemental cours S'agil il d'un context de n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Ratesse restrictions / Re- No naisese the type of inform Canada a la diffusion Not referentiate A no pas diffusor Re-stricted to: / Landé & : Specify country(les); / Précis C) Levisi of information / Ney- PROTECTED & PROTECTED & PROTECTED B PROTECTED B PROTECTED C	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean USSPEE) information a data blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a data blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a data blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or delivery requires t	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, or exercise service service or exercise service service des etiou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight atorage r will be required to access / fins MATO / OTAM MATO / OTAM All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Restricted to: / Lanté à : Specify country(les): / Précis NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO UNCLASSIFIE NATO CONFIDENTIAL	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	A 20165 d'accès restrainter tormation auquel le fourni Restrated to: / L Specify country(PROTECTED B PROTECTED B PROTECTED B PROTECTED B PROTECTED B	o access to 17 L'accès 1860ur donra s 1 Étranger fotione on relative		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Periodea is non-matterial disc Priodes in non-matterial disc PHOTECTED and/or CL e fourtheaser at see am à des renael/greatering of c) is this a commercial cour- S'sgH4 d'un content de n a) Indicate the type of Inform Canada b) Raissae restrictions (c) Laves of the second disc hold releases the form hold releases the filture Restricted to: / Laves 4 : Specify country(les): / Précis of Laves of Information / Ner PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 6 PROTECTED C PROTECTED C	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean SSIFED information A des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or	Duestion 7. c) eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, eu gut se trouve à la question 7, or essets le permitte. une personnel d'entresien) auro DES ethou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight schrager r will be required to access / ins NATO / OTAN MATO / OTAN d'ffusion All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Pestricted to: / Limité à : Specify country(les): / Précis NATO UNICLASSIFIED NATO UNICLASSIFIED NATO DIFFUSION RESTRES	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	Internation acquei le fourni a zones d'accès restrainter formation acquei le fourni Pornig No relesse restr Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L Specify country(PROTECTED A PROTECTED A PROTECTED C PROTECTED C	o access to 17 L'acoès 1860ur donta a 1 Étranger 1000s 100 tranger 100 tranger		Non (
(Specify the invest of acces (Precident in niversal direct (Precident in niversal direct (Precident in niversal direct (Precident in niversal direct) (Precident in the set of a des remanignements of (Precision and the set of a des remanignements) (Precision and the set of a landstate the type of inform Canada (D) Raissass restrictions / Re- no nisesas nestrictions / Re- no nisesas nestrictions (Precision and the set of a landstate the type of inform Canada (D) Raissass restrictions (Precision and the set of a landstate the type of inform Canada (D) Raissass restrictions (Canada (D) Raissass restrictions (Canada (D) Raissass restrictions (Canada (D) Raissass restrictions (Canada (D) Raissass (Canada (D) Raissass (Canada (D) Raissass (Canada (D) Raissas (Canada (D) Raissas (Canada (Canada (D) Raissas (Canada (Can	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean SSIFED information A des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or	Destina 7. e) eu gut ye irouve à la question 7. eu gut ye irouve à la question 7. eu gut ye irouve à la question 7. eu gut ye irou constitue des settou CLASSIFIES n'est pu ment with ne overnight storage? ison commerciale sams entrepo r will be required lo access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience r will be required to access / inv MATO / OTAN efficience Restricted to: / Limité & : Specify country(les): / Précis MATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO DISPUSION RESTRIE MATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO SECRET NATO SECRET	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	Internation acquei le foumi formation acquei le foumi Fornign No release reativités Accune restricté à ta diffusion Restricted to: / L Specify country PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 8 PR	o access to 17 L'accès 1860ur donra s 1870ur donra s 1870ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1890ur donra s 1890u		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Periodue in rhymau (Pace Periodue in rhymau (Pace Periodue in rhymau (Pace Periodue in rhymau (Pace b) Will the supplier and its a PHOTECTED ander CL to fourthabout at see arm à des remaining and the see arm a) Indicate the type of Inform Canada b) Release restrictions Accure rest	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean SSIFED information A des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or	Duestion 7. c) eu gut es trouve à la question 7, eu gut es trouve à la question 7, eu gut es trouve à la question 7, en conseils este partités. une personnel d'entresient auro CES ethou CLASSIFIES n'est pu maint with ne overnight abrage? In automation on conseil d'entresient is on commerciale same antrepo r will be required to access / Inn NATO / OTAN All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN d'Ension All NATO countries Tous les pays de l'OTAN Restricted to: / Limité à : Specify country(les): / Précis NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO UNCLASSIFIED NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CONFIDENTIAL NATO CERET	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	Internation acquei le fourni a zones d'accès restrainter formation acquei le fourni Pornig: No relesse restr Aucune restricté à la diffusion Restricted lo: / L Specify country(PROTECTED C PROTECTED C PROTECE D PROTECE D PROTECE D CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL SECRET	o access to 17 L'accès 1860ur donra s 1870ur donra s 1870ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1880ur donra s 1890ur donra s 1890u		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Periodean is non-mail (Pace) b) Will the supplier and its of PRIOTECTED and/or CL to fournhouser at see arm a des remarkingements do c) is rise a commercial cour- S'sgill d'un context do n a) Indicate the type of inform Canada b) Release restrictions Augure restriction a Augure restriction and/or a is diffusion Not release her form Restricted to: / Lineté 4 : Specify country(lee): / Pricis Courte of Information / Ner PROTECTED A PROTECTED A PROTECTED A PROTECTED C APROTECTED C APROTECTED C APROTECE B PROTECE B PROTECE C CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL CONFIDENTIAL	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean SSIFED information A des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or	Destination 7. c) au gut ye irouve à la question 7. au gut ye irouve de la question 7. au gut yet au	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	A 20165 d'accès restrainter termation acquei le fourni Restrated to: / L Specify country(PROTECTED 8 PROTECTED 7 SECRET SECRET	io access to 17 L'accès 1860/r don'il i 1 Étranger Etitons Innté é ies): / Précise		Non (
(Specify the lines of acces (Precident in normal disco (Precident in the normal disco (Precision in the normal disco)) (Precision in the not	es using the chart of 0 the on utilized is a bio mployees (e.g. clean SSIFED information A des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require a des blem PROTE/ the or delivery require the or delivery requires the or	Destination 7. c) au gut ye irouve à la question 7. au gut ye irouve de la question 7. au gut yet au	c) culture access to in min-las access to in min-las access & dee sautorisé. culture de nuit? diquer le type d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u culture d'u	Intrinsion soquel le fourni termation soquel le fourni Restricted to: / L Specify country(PROTECTED A PROTECTED A PROTECED B PROTECED B PROTECED B PROTECED B PROTECED B PROTECED C PROTECE CA PROTECE CA PROTE	o access to 17 L'acoès 1860ur donta a 17 Étranger 1000s 100 melaive 100 melaive		Non (

39

1+1	Government of Canada	Gouvernem du Canada	ent	[2014	10493	8
				[Security		n / Ciaes/Roation Inclase/Red	n de sécurité
La foursites Il Yes, India Dans Caffer	tur aure-I-II access atts the level of se native, indiquer le	à des recessioner raitbrity: riveau de sensib	ments ou	CLASSIFIED COMBEC & des biens COMSEC o	lésignés PROTÉGES (7 Mau CLASS	IFIÉS?	No Non
				MFOSEC Information or à des blans INFOSEC (dilicate?		Non _
	a) of material / Tite Number / Numbro		matchel	1				
451 10 211	State of the second	ALL PROPERTY.	/ November	de contritie de la sécur	té du personnel requie			
	RELIABILITY ST	TATUS		CONFIDENTIAL	SECRET		T 10P SE	
E	COTE DE FIABI TOP SECRET-	100 Table 1		CONFIDENTIEL NATO CONFIDENTIAL	NATO SECR	TET	1000 CO. 100	ECRET C TOP SECRET
	TRÊS SECRET SITE ACCESS ACCÉS AUX EN	- SKRINT	Ц	NATO CONFIDENTIEL	NATO SECR	RET	COSMI	c très secret
	Special commer Commentaires a		_			-0.272		
	Commentaires a	pécieux :				-		
	NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE : S	pécieux :	at de son	unidied, a Security Classi trôle de adcurité sont re	lication Guide must be p quis, un guide de class	provided. effication de l	n sécurilé dolt é	tre fourni.
O. b) May uni Du pere	NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE : 8	bevels of screens plusieurs nives be used for por	tions of t	trole de sécurité sont re	quis, un guide de class	provided. effication de l	is sebcurité doit é	Ine fourni.
Du pere	Commentative e NOTE: If multiple REMANDUE: S conserved personnel onnel serve autorite vill unscreened pe	e levels of screen i plusieurs nives is be used for por stion securitaire mormel be escon	tions of t pout-t se ed?	trôle de adcutte sont re ha work? a voir confler des parties	quis, un guide de class	provided. efficietion de l	n nécurité doit é	and a second
Du pere	Commentalities a NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE : S Konserved personnel onnel sans autoriti	e levels of screen i plusieurs nives is be used for por stion securitaire mormel be escon	tions of t pout-t se ed?	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? « voir confier des parties escorté?	quis, un guide de class	provided. effication de l	a sécurité doit é	and a second
Du pers Il Yes, v Dens fa	Commentative e NOTE: If multiple REMANDUE: S conserved personnel onnel serve autorite vill unscreened pe	pécieus: plateurs of screeni plateurs nives is be used for por sition eleuritaire ; normal be escont annel en question control en question	ac de con toms of t pect-i se ed? sers-1-i	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? e voir confier des parties escorté?	quia, un guida da class du traval?	provided. effication de l	a sécurité doit é	and a second
Du pers Il Yes, u Dens fa INFORMATH	Commentaines s NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE: S consumed parsonne onnel sans autoris di unscreened pa dimative, la para dimative, la para di	pécieus : a levels of screenis a be used for por sition sécurture ; nomel be encont prové en question secure securitaries recipiones en question secure securitaries	ac de son fisme of t post-i se ed? sera-t-i sera-t-i sera-t-i	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? e voir confier des parties escorté?	quie, un guide de class du travei? communicipalitation	effication de l		
Du pers if Yea, u Dens ha INFORMATH 1. a) Will the premise Le tour	Commentaines s NOTE: If multiple REAARDOUE: S conterned paraonno onnel cans autorit rell unscriented paraonno filmmative, la parao filmmative, la parao film	pécieux: plusieurs nèves be used for por stion sécuritaire monvel be escori recipieté distance recipieté distance recipieté distance est la receive and	ac de son lions of ti peot-i se ed? sers-t-i sers-t-i sers-t-i store PF	trole de sécurité sont re he work? evoir confier des parties escorté? Securité: Million Restauration III né	quis, un guide de class du travel? Reformation de SSIFIED Information of	effication de l	a site or	and a second
Du pers if Yes, u Dens fo ENFORMATION (1. a) Will the premise Le four CLASSI	Commentaines s NOTE: If multiple REAALPOUE : 8 conterned paraonno onnel cans autorit il unacreaned para filmusitive, la parao filmusitive, la parao filmus	pécieux : a levels of screenin a be used for por seton sécurtaire mornel be escon mornel en question recipion securtaire recipion securtaire recipion securation recipion securation recipion securation and to receive and to de receivoir et d	ai de con lions of t peci-l se ed? sers-1-l ENTS / II store PF S'entrepo	trole de sécurité sont re he work? excirté? escirté? estificée estituée de parties estificée estituée de parties sontée de parties de parties de parties sontée de parties de parties de parties sontée de parties de parties de parties de parties sontée de parties de parties de parties de parties de parties sontée de parties de par	<u>quie, un guide de class</u> du travel? SSIFIED information or gnements ou dos bien	effication de l	a site or	
Du pers if Yes, u Dans fa ENFORMATION 11. a) Will the premises Le four CLASSI	Commentaires s NOTE: If multipl REAAUDUE : S conterned personn onnel cans autorit il unacreaned per filmusitive. Ja perso filmusitive, la perso filmusitive, la perso filmusitive, la perso filmusitive, la perso contraction terminist on / ASSETS // multiple be require desare sers-t-il ter FIES?	pécieux : a levels of screenin a be used for por seton sécurtaire mornel be escon mornel en question recipion securtaire recipion securtaire recipion securation recipion securation recipion securation and to receive and to de receivoir et d	ai de con lions of t peci-l se ed? sers-1-l ENTS / II store PF S'entrepo	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? excirté? escorté? sont doer des parties escorté? sont doer des parties ROTECTED and/or CLAI wer sur place des rensel	<u>quie, un guide de class</u> du travel? SSIFIED information or gnements ou dos bien	effication de l	a site or	V No Wen
Du pers If Yes, v Dens ha Dens ha D	Commentaines a NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE: S consumed parsonen cornel eans autoris off unscreamed pa- diffurnative, la parso diffurnative, la parso diffuence autority diffuence au	pécieux : a lavels of screening phateurs intra- setion securitaire ; recrime be excort setion securitaire ; recrime be excort setion securitaire ; recrime be excort recrime be excort r	at de con Rome of th peof-1 se ad? sera-1-4 ENTS / D store PF S'entrepo CONSEC a rensolg	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? excirté? escorté? sont doer des parties escorté? sont doer des parties ROTECTED and/or CLAI wer sur place des rensel	quis, un guide de class du travel? SSIFIED Information or Ignements ou dos bien XOMSEC? TED and/or CLASSIFIE	r assets on its s PROTÉGÉ ED material or	s site or 5 stitu • equipment	V No Wen
Du pers If Yes, v Dens fo INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION CLASSI 1. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTION I. c) Will the poccur at Les inste who can able the inste the	Commentaines a NOTE: If multiple REMARQUE: S consumed parsonne construction parsonne onnel cans autoris di unscreaned parsonnel di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di unscreaned di u	pécieux: physicul creation physicul creation alter used for por sition electritaire incomel be escont annel en question annel en question annel en question attributer/orient at to sefeguerd de to asfeguerd de chare, and/or repair premiser? seur serviront-eller	at de pon Rome of t pend-i ao ed? sers-t-i store PF S'entrepo COMSEC s renseig r andior r a à la pro	trôle de sécurité sont re he work? evoir confier des parties escorté? softectes mutates neur liente ROTECTED and/or CLAI ser sur place des rense information or assets? modification) of PROTEC	quis, un guide de class du travell? SSIFIED Information or ignements ou des bien XOMSEC? TED and/or CLASSIFIE réparation et/ou modific	r assets on its a PROTÉGÉ ED material or ration) de mat	s site or S et/ou squipment ériel PROTEGE	
Du pers If Yes, v Dens fa INFORMATION INFORMATION Le four PRODUCTION CLASSI 1. b) Will the Le four PRODUCTION CLASSI CLAS	Commentaines s NOTE: If multiple REALAPOUE: S conterned personne onnel cans autofit vill unacreaned per filmmative. In person filmmative. In person filmmative. In person filmmative. In person on / ASSETS // aupplier be require inscor serse-t-il ter FIES? supplier be require inscor serse-t-il ter FIES? supplier be require inscor serse-t-il ter FIES? supplier be require inscor serse-t-il ter FIES? supplier be require inscor du fournier ASSIFE?	pécieux : a levels of screenin a be used for por setor sécuritaire momel en question rechterservoir et a ad to seleguer de u de receivoir et a ad to seleguer de u de proséger de chare, and/or repe eur servicont alle (71) MEDIA: /	at de pon Rome of t persi-i se ed? sers-i-i store PP Sentrepo couisec a renselig ir anditor e a la pro	trole de sécurité sont re he work? evoir confier des parties escorté? softieces mutores des ROTECTED and/or CLA ser sur place des rense information or assets? modification) of PROTEC duction (fabrication et/ou	quis, un guide de class du travell? SSIFIED Information or gnements ou des bien XOMSEC? TED and/or CLASSIFIE réparation et/ou modific NOLCOBE DE L'IMPOR	r assets on its a PROTÉGÉ ED material or adion) de met	s sils or S ellou aquipment intel PROTEGE	×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20
Du pers If Yes, v Dens fo INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION INFORMATION PRODUCTION I. c) Will the p occur at Les inst seture CLASSI II. b) Will the p occur at Les inst seture CLASSI II. c) Will the p occur at Les inst seture CLASSI III. c) Will the p occur at III. c) Will the p	Commentaines a NOTE: If multiple REALAROUSE: S consumed paraconn connel cans subort offic uncreated paraconn offic and paraconnel discourter and subort discourter and subort informative, la perso discourter and subort and and and and and another and another paraconnel and another another and another another and another another and another another and another anoth	pécieux : a levels of screenin a be used for por attor sécuritaire momel en quastion rechter autoritation rechter autoritation rechter autoritation at to seleguerd de u de receivoir et d at to seleguerd de chare, and/or repaire rechter selevitioni-atter (01) MEDIA. / flo use to 17 syste of Volleer see prog	at de con Rome of t Penet i se ed? sers-1-i store PP store PP stor	trole de sécurité sont re he work? evoir confier des parties escorté? strifficer exitoss parties escorté? enternation ce sesets? premente ou des biens (modification) el PROTEC duction (tabrication el/ou ectronically process, prod tmes informatiques pour	quis, un guide de class du travell? SSIFIED Information or ignements ou des bien XXMSEC? TED and/or CLASSIFIE réparation et/ou modifio NOLOGIE DE L'IMPOR uce or slore PROTECT	r assets on its a PROTÉGÉ ED material or sation) de met suiton) de met	s site or S et/ou equipment terei PROTEGE	
Du pers If Yes, v Dens ha Dens ha Dens ha INFORMATH 1. a) Will the Le four PRODUCTION 1. b) Will the CLASSI 1. b) Will the count of entropy CLASSI 1. b) Will the promised of the four I. c) Will the promised of the four I. c) Will the promised of I. c) Vill the promised of II.	Commentaines s NOTE: If multiply RESALPCOLE: S someoned paraonno onnel cans autofit vill unscreamed paraonno onnel cans autofit vill unscreamed paraonno fill unscreamed paraonno multiple be sequent issues cansi-til ten paraonno de require issues cansi-til ten issues cansi-til ten ten outoplier be require issues be requires ten outoplier be requires issues be requires ten outoplier be requires issues te requires issues to r	pécieux : a levels of screenin a be used for por seton sécuritaire momel en quastion recht Screenive and recht Screenive and to de receivoir et d ad to safeguard C to de proséger de chare, and/or repe au de proséger de chare, and/or repe au servicont alle (TT) MEDIA. / fo use to IT syste of volteer se pro- mées PROTEGE Ink between the se	at de con tome of t perci-1 a ed? store PF store PF	trole de sécurité sont re he work? evoir confier des parties escorté? strifficer exitoss parties escorté? enternation ce sesets? premente ou des biens (modification) el PROTEC duction (tabrication el/ou ectronically process, prod tmes informatiques pour	quis, un guide de class du travell? SSIFIED Information or gnementa ou des bien XOMSEC? TED and/or CLASSIFIE réparation et/ou modific NOLOGIE DE L'INFOR uce or sione PROTECT traiter, produite ou aloch	r assets on its a PROTÉGÉ ED material or sation) de met MATION (TI) TED and/or CL kar électronic penoy?	s sits or S et/ou equipment énel PROTEGE LASSIFIED usement des	×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20 ×20

40

Government Gouvernement of Canada du Canada

-	Contract Number / Numero du contrat
	201404935
-	Security Classification / Classification de sécurité
	Unclassified

PAST wally use the summary chart below to indicate the category(les) and lavel(s) of sateguarding required at the supplier's

For users completing the form manuality use the summary chief below to indicate the category(ies) and level(s) of sateguerding required at the supplier's stack) or premises. Les utilisations qui remplesent le formulaire menuationent doivent utiliser le tableau récepitulatif ci-dessous pour indiquer, pour chaque catégorie, les niveaux de sauvegarde requis aux installations du fournisseur.

For users completing the form online (via the internet), the summary chart is automatically populated by your responses to previous questions. Dars is cas des utilizations qui remplication to formulaire en ligne (per internet), les réponses aux questions précédentes sont automatiquement saisles dans le tableau réceptulatif.

SUMMARY CHART / TABLEAU RECAPITULATIF

Canadianty	PROVIDE		CLASSIFIC CLASSIFIC			NATO				COMSEC						
	-		0	CONFIDENTIAL	Secret	Secret	NATO	NATO CONTRACTO	AATO	Tor		OT MET		COPPORTIN	Secret	Second
				Convenient.	1	THES SOUND	HATO OFFUNDON	COMPONITIES		Socret Gomes Teta	-		G	CONTROPTING	Calerto C	THEN SECTORY
Annualist / Assets annualist annualist / Barra annualist		F	F			-					F	F	F		-	-
alleria /			E	_	_	-										
		01	100	1996 a		1000		1	10 H			11-1	1		1	Zer en
2. a) is the descrip La description If Yes, classif Dans falfirms - Classificatio	du l	in fo	d yis	id per lè prési by annotating for le présent	the top is formula	and botto ire en ind	n de nature P em In the are Aquant le nh	ROTÉGÉE el	ou CLAS	lessificat		••			✓ Nen	
b) VMI the docu La documenta														[✓ Non	
If Yes, classif		-		ty annotating T with Attach	the top	and bolto	m in the are	entitled *8	ecurity G	lessificet	lon"	end	Indi	cale with		

TBS/SCT 350-103(2004/12)

Security Classification / Classification de sécurité Unclassified

4

Canada

.

41

Annex "C" - Basis of Payment

A- Contract Period (date of contract award to one year later).

Option to Extend the Contract:

- (i) The Contractor grants to Canada the irrevocable option to extend the term of the Contract by up to two (2) additional one (1) year periods under the same terms and conditions. The Contractor agrees that, during the extended period of the Contract, it will be paid in accordance with the applicable provisions set out in the Basis of Payment.
- (ii) Canada may exercise this option at any time by sending a written notice to the Contractor at least 10 calendar days before the expiry date of the Contract. The option may only be exercised by the Contracting Authority, and will be evidenced, for administrative purposes only, through a contract amendment.

1.0 Labour

The Contractor will be paid firm all-inclusive per diem rates as follows:

Period	Firm All-Inclusive Per Diem Rate	Estimated Number of Days	Sub-Total for Evaluation
	(A)	(B)	(C) = (A) X (B)
Initial Period	\$	220	\$
Option Period 1	\$	220	\$
Option Period 2	\$	220	\$
	TOTAL BID PRICE:		\$

Table 1: Application/Software Architect – Level 3

All deliverables are F.O.B. Destination, and Canadian Customs Duty included, where applicable. GST/HST:

- All prices and amounts of money in the Contract are exclusive of Goods and Services Tax (GST) or Harmonized Sales Tax (HST), as applicable, unless otherwise indicated. The GST or HST, whichever is applicable, is extra to the price herein and will be paid by Canada.
- 2. The estimated GST or HST of "to be indicated at contract award" CAD is included in the total estimated cost. GST or HST, to the extent applicable, will be incorporated into all invoices and progress claims and shown as a separate item on invoices and progress claims. All items that are zero-rated, exempt or to which the GST or HST does not apply, are to be identified as such on all invoices. The Contractor agrees to remit to Canada Revenue Agency any amounts of GST and HST paid or due.

1.1 Definition of a Day/Proration:

A day is defined as 7.5 hours exclusive of meal breaks. Payment will be for days actually worked with no provision for annual leave, statutory holidays and sick leave. Time worked which is more or less than a day will be prorated to reflect actual time worked in accordance with the following formula:

Hours worked X applicable firm per diem rate

7.5 hours

- (i) All proposed personnel must be available to work outside normal office hours during the duration of the Contract.
- (ii) No overtime charges will be authorized under the Contract. All time worked will be compensated according to paragraph above.

Annex "D" – Evaluation Criteria

MANDATORY CRITERIA

Item	Description	Met/Not Met (Yes or No)	Substantiation
M1	The proposed consultant must have a minimum of ten (10) years demonstrated experience within the last fifteen (15) years performing Enterprise Search using Autonomy Idol Search.		
M2	The proposed consultant must have a minimum of five (5) years demonstrated experience within the last six (6) years performing each of the following: • Large IDOL distributed architecture (20+ content engines); • IDOL XML full structure querying; • Customizing IDOL security; • Indexing large volumes (40,000,000+ records); • Large volumes (200,000,000+) DB2 database rows; and • IBM XQuery and writing complex SQL queries.		
М3	The proposed consultant must have a minimum of ten (10) years demonstrated experience within the last fifteen (15) years designing and implementing Enterprise Search applications and		

	architectures.		
M4	The proposed consultant must have a minimum of ten (10) years demonstrated experience within the last fifteen (15) years working with IDOL Connector Framework Server (CFS) and Lua scripting.		
М5	The proposed consultant must have a minimum of four (4) years demonstrated experience within the last five (5) years customizing IDOL document filters and viewer XSLT templates.		

POINT-RATED CRITERIA

Each Technical Proposal that meets all Mandatory Requirement specified above will be evaluated and scored in accordance with the following point-rated evaluation criteria.

- 1. In addressing the point rated evaluation criteria, the bidder should supplement the information supplied in response to the mandatory requirements with details outlining the depth and extent of the relevant experience, qualifications and specialized expertise of the proposed resource. All claims with regard to resource experience, qualifications or expertise must be substantiated through the provision of detailed project descriptions of how and where the claimed experience, qualifications or expertise were gained. Unsubstantiated claims of experience, qualifications or expertise will not be considered by the evaluation team during the point rated evaluation.
- 2. Bidder must achieve the minimum overall pass mark to be considered compliant: 60%

Item	Description	Maximum Score	Score	Substantiation
R1	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with HP Autonomy IDOL 10. Allocation of points: • 0 to < 1 year = 0 points • 1 to < 2 years = 1 point • 2 to < 3 years = 2 points • 3 to < 4 years = 3 points • 4 to < 5 years = 4 points • \geq 5 years = 5 points	5		
R2	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated project experience working with the following operating systems: a. Suse Linux b. Solaris Operating System Allocation of points: 1 point per year of experience for each operating system to a maximum of 10 points each.	20		
R3	 The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience writing and delivering technical documentation. Allocation of points: 0 to < 1 year = 0 points 1 to < 2 years = 10 points ≥ 2 years = 20 points 	20		
R4	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated project experience in collecting, defining, interpreting and amalgamating end-user requirements to produce functional specifications. Allocation of points: • 1 project = 1 point • 2 projects = 5 points	10		

	 > 2 projects = 10 points 			
R5	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with IDOL indexing of PureEdge, and Wordperfect Suite documents. Allocation of points: • 0 to < 1 year = 0 points • 1 to < 2 years = 2 point • 2 to < 3 years = 4 points • 3 to < 4 years = 6 points • 4 to < 5 years = 8 points • \geq 5 years = 10 points	10		
R6	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with IDOL indexing of Adobe PDF, MS Office Suite, and html documents. Allocation of points: • 0 to < 1 year = 0 points • 1 to < 2 years = 1 point • 2 to < 3 years = 2 points • 3 to < 4 years = 3 points • 4 to < 5 years = 4 points • \geq 5 years = 5 points	5		
R7	 The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with the following technologies: a. Large IDOL distributed architecture (20+ content engines); b. IDOL XML full structure querying; c. Customizing IDOL security; d. Indexing large volumes (40,000,000+ records); e. Large volumes (200,000,000+) DB2 database rows; and; f. Writing complex SQL queries. Allocation of points: 1 point per 1 year of experience for each technology to a maximum of 5 points each. 	30		

		1		
R8	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with Release Management and deployment automation. Allocation of points: 2 points per year of experience to a maximum of 20 points.	20		
R9	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with law enforcement concepts. Allocation of points: 1 point per year of experience to a maximum of 5 points.	5		
R10	The proposed consultant should have demonstrated experience with entity relationships and enterprise search methodology. Allocation of points: 1 point per year of experience to a maximum of 5 points.	5		
R11	 The proposed consultant should have demonstrated Experience with the following technologies: a. IBM Extract, Transform, Load (ETL) processes; b. IBM ETL InfoSphere Information Server DataStage 8.7 c. IBM Change Data Capture v6.5 while indexing ETL resulting database Allocation of points: 1 point per year of experience for each technology to a maximum of 5 points each. 	15		
R12	The proposed resource should have demonstrated experience as an Enterprise Search Expert, Text Search Engine Specialist, Solutions	20		

Architect and/or Application Architect.				
Allocation of points: 2 points per year of experience to a maximum of 10 years.				
Maximum Points Available	165			
Minimum Pass Score (60%)	99	9		

Annex "E" – Additional Certifications Precedent to Contract Award

Status and Availability of Resources

(a) By submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that, should it be awarded a contract as a result of the bid solicitation, every individual proposed in its bid will be available to perform the Work as required by Canada's representatives and at the time specified in the bid solicitation or agreed to with Canada's representatives.

For a contract(s) estimated at \$400K or less ONLY, the following applies:

i. Following verification from the Contract Authority, should the resulting Contract be awarded within sixty (60) days from the solicitation closing date, the proposed resource must be available to perform the services in accordance with the Contract. If during the verification, the proposed resource is no longer available, the next ranked compliant bidder will be awarded the Contract.

(b) If the Bidder has proposed any individual who is not an employee of the Bidder, by submitting a bid, the Bidder certifies that it has the permission from that individual or his/her employer to propose his/her services in relation to the Work to be performed and to submit his/her résumé to Canada. The Bidder must, upon request from the Contracting Authority, provide a written confirmation, signed by the individual, of the permission given to the Bidder and of his/her availability. Failure to comply with the request may result in the bid being declared non-responsive.

Education and Experience

(a) The Bidder certifies that all the information provided in the résumés and supporting material submitted with its bid, particularly the information pertaining to education, achievements, experience and work history, has been verified by the Bidder to be true and accurate. Furthermore, the Bidder warrants that every individual proposed by the Bidder for the requirement is capable of performing the Work described in the resulting contract.

All of the resources proposed must meet the minimum experience requirements detailed in the Supply Arrangement for the category of personnel for which they are being proposed. The SA Holder acknowledges that the Department of Public Works and Government Services Canada reserves the right to verify this certification prior to contract award or during contract performance and that untrue statements may result in the proposal being declared non-responsive or any other action which the Minister may consider appropriate.

ANNEX "F" TBIPS BID SUBMISSION FORM

(to be filled in by Bidder)				
Bidder's full legal name				
Authorized Representative of Bidder for evaluation purposes (e.g., clarifications)	Name			
	Title			
	Address			
	Telephone #			
	Fax #			
	Email			
Bidder's Procurement Business Number (PBN) [see the Standard Instructions 2003]				
Jurisdiction of Contract: Province in Canada the bidder wishes to be the legal jurisdiction applicable to any resulting contract (if other than as specified in solicitation)	As per TBIPS	Holder Sup	oply Arrange	ment.
Former Public Servants	Is the Bidder a FPS bid solicitation?	in receipt of a	pension as defin	ed in the
See the Article in Part 5 of the bid solicitation entitled Former Public Servant Certification for a definition of	Yes No If yes, provide the in entitled "Former Put	formation requ		e in Part 5
"Former Public Servant".	Is the Bidder a FPS received a lump sun payment under the t work force reduction program?	n erms of a		
	Yes No	_		
	If yes, provide the in required by the Artic 5 entitled "Former P Servant Certification	le in Part ublic		
Security Clearance Level of Bidder		I		
[include both the CISD security clearance number, level and the date it was granted]				

Security Clearance Level of Bidder's Individual	
Resources [add additional resources on another	
page, if required)	
i. Name of Individual as it appears on security clearance	
application:	i.
ii. Level of security clearance obtained and expiry date:	
	ii.
iii. Security Screening Certificate and Briefing Form file	
number	
	iii.
On behalf of the bidder, by signing below, I confirm that	
I have read the entire bid solicitation including the	
documents incorporated by reference into the bid	
solicitation and I certify that:	
1. The bidder considers itself and its products able to	
meet all the mandatory requirements described in the	
bid solicitation;	
2. This bid is valid for the period requested in the bid	
solicitation; 3. All the information provided in the bid is complete,	
true and accurate; and	
4. If the bidder is awarded a contract, it will accept all	
the terms and conditions set out in the resulting contract	
clauses included in the bid solicitation.	
Signature of Authorized Representative of Bidder	